Tuesday January 21, 2020
6:00 PM - Winooski City Hall (27 West Allen Street)
Claire Burke Council Chambers

I. Call to Order
II. Pledge of Allegiance
III. Agenda Review
IV. Public Comment
V. Consent Agenda
V.A. Approval: City Council Minutes of 1/13/20

Documents:
City Council Minutes of 1.13.20.pdf
V.B. Approval: Warrant ending 1/16/20 and Payroll Warrant 12/29/19 - 1/11/20

Documents:
Warrant Ending 1.16.20.pdf
Payroll Warrant 12.29.19 to 1.11.20 Cover Sheet Only.pdf
VI. Council Reports
VII. City Update
VIII. Regular Items
VIII.A.Approval: Annual FY19 Audit Presentation - A Aldieri

Documents:
Coversheet - FY19 External Audit.pdf
FY19 Audit.pdf
VIII.B.Approval: Event Permit Application: WIld Kratts Critter Crawl- H Carrington

Documents:
1) Coversheet - Wild Kratts Critter Crawl.pdf
2) 2020.5.30 Wild Kratts Critter Crawl Event Permit.pdf
3) map_for_critter_crawl (2).pdf
VIII.C.FY21 Proposed Budget Discussion

Documents:
1) Coversheet - Wild Kratts Critter Crawl.pdf
2) 2020.5.30 Wild Kratts Critter Crawl Event Permit.pdf
3) map_for_critter_crawl (2).pdf
VIII.C.FY21 Proposed Budget Discussion

Documents:
Cover Sheet - FY21 Proposed Budget Discussion.pdf.pdf
FY21 Proposed Budget Discussion.pdf.pdf
VIII.D.Discussion: Resolution: FY21 Water Rates - J Rauscher, A Aldieri

Documents:
Cover Sheet - Water Rate Resolution.docx
2020 Water Rate Resolution.docx
VIII.E.Discussion: Resolution: FY21 Wastewater Rates - J Rauscher, A Aldieri

Documents:
Cover Sheet - Wastewater Rate Resolution.pdf
2020 Wastewater Rate Resolution.pdf
VIII.F. Discussion: Goal Update: Safe, Healthy, Connected People R Coffey, R Hebert, J Audy

Documents:
Coversheet - Safe Healthy Connected People Goal Update.pdf
Safe Healthy Connected People Goal Update.pdf
VIII.G.Approval: Certification of TIF Annual Report to Vermont Economic Progress Council - A Aldieri

Documents:
Coversheet - VEPC TIF Annual Report Certification.pdf
TIF Certification Letter.pdf
TIF Certification Report.pdf
IX. Adjourn

Agenda Item
Date
Submitting
Department
Recommended Action

FY19 External Audit
January 21, 2020
Finance

Strategic Vision Area
and Strategy

All

Expenditure Required
(amount and source)
Background
Information

n/a

Receive fiscal year 2019 audit report from Joshua Quinn, CPA
from RHR Smith & Company

City Council approved the engagement of RHR Smith &
Company to conduct an audit of the fiscal year 2019 financial
statements on April 15, 2019.
Preliminary fieldwork was conducted in mid-June and full
fieldwork occurred the week of October 14th. Staff completed
and submitted financial statements to the auditors for review on
November 25th. Final audit reports were received on December
27th.

Supporting Documents

FY19 Audit
The Audit is publically available at:
https://www.winooskivt.gov/DocumentCenter/View/2674/FY19Audit

Interested Parties
City Manager Approval

Public, Grantors, Vermont Municipal Bond Bank, Banking &
Leasing Agents, Note holders,

Audited Financial Statements
and Other Financial Information

City of Winooski, Vermont

June 30, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
City Council
City of Winooski
Winooski, Vermont
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental
activities, business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Winooski, Vermont, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of
Winooski, Vermont’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
3 Old Orchard Road, Buxton, Maine 04093
Tel: (800) 300-7708
(207) 929-4606
Fax: (207) 929-4609
www.rhrsmith.com
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reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Unmodified Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of Winooski, Vermont as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require
that the management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information and
pension information on pages 4 through 14 and 65 through 68 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the City of Winooski, Vermont’s basic financial
statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements.
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and related directly to the
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underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our
report dated December 23, 2019 on our consideration of the City of Winooski, Vermont’s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the City of Winooski, Vermont’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Buxton, Maine
Vermont Registration No. 092.0000697
December 23, 2019
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2019
(UNAUDITED)
This document will serve as a narrative overview and analysis of the financial operations of the
City of Winooski for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. This information is to be considered in
conjunction with the financial statements and accompanying notes that follow.
Overview
The City continues to operate from a strong financial position as a result of conservative
budgeting and strategic investment. Winooski, in comparison to many other Vermont
communities, is seeing active development and in‐migration. This development will lead to
positive grand list growth over the next year and into the future. With this growth and
associated strategic investments in the city, we are poised to continue to fund the operating
budget to ensure that we provide high quality municipal services and are able to invest in the
City’s infrastructure.
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Winooski’s
basic financial statements. The financial statements have three main components –
government‐wide presentation, fund presentation and notes to the financial statements.
Government Wide Financial Statements
The government‐wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City of Winooski finances in a way that is more commonly associated with
private sector businesses.
The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities with
the difference being reported as net position. Increases or decreases in net position may serve
as an indicator of whether the financial position is improving or deteriorating.
The statement of activities presents information demonstrating how the net position changed
during the year. All changes to net position are reported as soon as the event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of cash flows. This means that revenues and expenses
reported in this statement may be for events that will happen in the future such as earned but
unused time off for staff or uncollected property taxes.
These government‐wide financial statements present separately the functions of the City that
are primarily supported by taxes and other intergovernmental revenue, governmental activities,
from those that are intended to recover all or most of their costs from user fees and charges,
business‐type activities. The governmental activities of the City of Winooski include general
government, public safety, public works, recreation, parks, community services, rental registry
and public improvements. The business‐type activities include the water, water pollution
control (sewer) and parking operations.
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The government‐wide financial statements include not only the City itself (referred to as the
primary government), but also to other legally separate entities for which the City is financially
accountable (referred to as component units). During the current year, the City was responsible
for the Winooski Community Development Trust that qualified as a component unit.
The government‐wide financial statements can be found in Exhibits A and B of this report.
Fund Financial Statements
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Towns and governments use fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance‐related legal requirements. All
funds can be divided into one of three categories: governmental, proprietary, or fiduciary.
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions as reported in the
governmental activities section of the government‐wide financial statements. However, unlike
the government‐wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on
near‐term inflows and outflows of spendable resources and the balances of spendable resources
available at the end of a fiscal year. This information is useful when evaluating a government’s
near‐term financing requirements.
The focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government‐wide financial
statements so it can be useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government‐wide
statements. This can give the reader a better understanding of the long‐term impact of the
government’s near‐term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to ease the comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.
The City of Winooski maintains eight governmental funds including the General Fund, one
Capital Fund and six Special Revenue Funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, TIF Downtown Fund,
Community Development Loan Fund and City Capital Fund which are considered to be major
funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
classification. The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found in Exhibits C
through E of this report. Individual fund data for each non‐major governmental fund is provided
in the form of combining statements in supporting Schedules 4 and 5.
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison
statement is provided in Schedule 3 for the purpose of demonstrating compliance with the duly
appropriated budget.
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The City of Winooski maintains the proprietary type fund known as an enterprise fund for the
Water Fund, Water Pollution Control (Sewer) Fund and Parking Fund. An enterprise fund is used
to report the same function presented in the government‐wide financial statements and they
provide the same type of information in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements
provide separate information for the Water Fund, Water Pollution Control (Sewer) Fund and
Parking Fund all of which are considered to be major funds for the City. The basic proprietary
fund financial statements can be found in Exhibits F through H of this report. The Parking Fund is
made up of two distinct operational centers, the Parking Garage and On Street Meters. There
are bond covenant requirements that apply to the operations of the parking garage and in order
to provide separate financial information for these departments their individual data is provided
in the form of combining statements in Schedules 6 and 7.
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held by the City for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government‐wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support government
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.
The City has no fiduciary funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.
Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government‐wide and fund financial statements. The notes serve to explain,
clarify and expand upon the financial data presented in the financial statements and provide
some additional information. The notes to the financial statements can be found immediately
following the basic financial statements in this report.
Other Information
In addition to the basic financial statements and notes this report presents certain
supplementary information to provide additional financial information not included in the basic
financial statements.
This supplementary information includes budgetary comparison
statements, information on changes in the net pension liability, employer contributions to
pension, and investment returns, and combining statements for various funds. The
supplementary information can be found immediately following the notes to the financial
statements in this report.
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Government‐wide Financial Analysis
Summary Statement of Net Position
2018

2019

Current & Other Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Governmental Business‐type
Activities
Activities
$
5,984,544
3,288,503
24,177,782
22,415,241
$
30,162,326
25,703,744

Deferred Outflow of
Resources

$

1,323,725

74,379

1,398,104 $

1,320,998

53,958

1,374,956

$
$

1,067,077
17,146,927
18,214,004

370,203
1,791,276
2,161,479

1,437,280 $
18,938,203
20,375,483 $

1,186,678
18,928,432
20,115,110

275,826
1,271,841
1,547,667

1,462,504
20,200,273
21,662,777

$

64,281

7,417

71,698 $

112,685

11,046

123,731

Net Investment in Capital
Assets
$
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position
$

9,521,092
3,242,154
444,520
13,207,766

21,090,443
123,648
2,395,136
23,609,227

30,611,535 $
3,365,802
2,839,656
36,816,993 $

8,392,804
3,812,874
719,376
12,925,054

21,495,473
136,647
2,212,453
23,844,573

29,888,277
3,949,521
2,931,829
36,769,627

Current Liabilitities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of
Resources

Governmental Business‐type
Total
Activities
Activities
9,273,047 $
6,755,051
3,063,920
46,593,023
25,076,800
22,285,408
55,866,070 $
31,831,851
25,349,328

Total
9,818,971
47,362,208
57,181,179

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the City of Winooski, assets exceeded liabilities by $36,816,993
at the close of the most recent fiscal year.
By far the largest portion of the City of Winooski’s net position (83.14%) reflects its investment
in capital assets including land, buildings, equipment and infrastructure less any related debt
that is still outstanding used to acquire those assets. The City of Winooski uses these capital
assets to provide services to its residents; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the City of Winooski’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related
debt it should be noted that the resources to repay this debt must be provided by other sources
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to as payment on these liabilities in most
cases.
An additional portion of the City of Winooski’s net position (9.14%) represents resources that
are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of
unrestricted net position ($2,839,656) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors. Included in unrestricted net position are amounts that
management has assigned for particular purposes such as capital reserves, programs and
expenditures in subsequent years.
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At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Winooski was able to report positive balances in
all three categories of net position for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
governmental and business‐type activities. The same situation was true in the prior fiscal year.
Summary Statement of Activities
2019
Governmental Business‐type
Activities
Activities
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Operating Grants & Contributions
Capital Grants & Contributions
General Revenues
Property Taxes and Penalty
Unrestricted Investment Earnings
Other Revenues
Total Revenues
Expenses
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture & Recreation
Community Development
Interest on Long Term Debt
Water
Sewer
Parking
Total Expenses
Change in Net Position Before Transfers
Transfers
Change in Net Position
Net Position ‐ Beginning of Year
Net Position ‐ End of Year

$

2,598,825
259,188
4,887

$

8,194,733
33,025
34,470
11,041,657

‐
8,194,733
16,656
49,681
‐
34,470
3,179,026 14,220,683 $

7,385,562
19,628
65,985
10,334,075

‐
7,385,562
3,165
22,793
‐
65,985
2,895,346 13,229,421

$

1,807,130
3,458,516
2,494,444
873,125
1,437,867
798,060
‐
‐
‐
10,869,142

‐
1,807,130
‐
3,458,516
‐
2,494,444
‐
873,125
‐
1,437,867
‐
798,060
890,956
890,956
1,262,224 1,262,224
1,150,995 1,150,995
3,304,175 14,173,317 $

1,433,676
3,388,979
2,079,906
832,786
333,243
861,397
‐
‐
‐
8,929,987

‐
1,433,676
‐
3,388,979
‐
2,079,906
‐
832,786
‐
333,243
‐
861,397
917,335
917,335
1,172,837 1,172,837
1,043,183 1,043,183
3,133,355 12,063,342

172,515
110,197
282,712
12,925,054
13,207,766

(125,149)
47,366 $
(110,197)
‐
(235,346)
47,366 $
23,844,573 36,769,627
23,609,227 36,816,993 $

1,404,088
152,083
1,556,171
11,368,883
12,925,054

(238,009) 1,166,079
(152,083)
‐
(390,092) 1,166,079
24,234,665 35,603,548
23,844,573 36,769,627

$
$

3,143,933
1,633
16,804

2,863,400
20,141
8,640

Total

5,538,827 $
231,437
171,535

$

2,394,894
229,804
154,731

Total

2018
Governmental Business‐type
Activities
Activities

5,462,225
279,329
13,527

Governmental Activities
Governmental activities increased the City of Winooski’s net position by $282,712 during the
current fiscal year. Net investment in capital assets, net of related debt, increased by
$1,128,288. This increase resulted from the net effect of a decrease as a result of depreciation
exceeding capital outlays, an increase as a result of principal payments on long term bonds and
notes, and new debt issuance. Restricted net position decreased by $570,720 primarily due to
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use of reserves to make payments on the Downtown Project Debt Service during the fiscal year.
Unrestricted net position decreased by $274,855 as a result the assignment of previously
unrestricted balances to projects by the City Council.
Business‐type Activities
Business‐type activities decreased the City of Winooski’s net position by $235,346 during the
current fiscal year. This was influenced by the all of these funds making use of reserves to
complete capital projects including parking garage structural repairs, geotechnical work at 17
Abenaki Way for a future parking garage location, Hickok Street preliminary engineering for
water line replacement, the natural gas generator installation at the Wastewater Plant and the
Pine Grove Terrace stormwater retention pond upgrades. Restricted net position decreased by
$12,999 due to the use of aid in expansion reserves of the wastewater/sewer fund to slip line
sanitary sewers and manholes to reduce storm water infiltration exceeding the new aid in
expansion fees paid for development in the current fiscal year.
Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds
As noted earlier, the City of Winooski uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance‐related legal requirements.
Governmental Funds
The focus of the City of Winooski governmental funds is to provide information on near‐term
inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing
the City of Winooski’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year.
At the end of the current fiscal year the City of Winooski’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $3,384,869, an increase of $66,374 in comparison to the prior
year. Of this total amount $229,600 is nonspendable (prepaid expenses and inventory) and
$1,312,462 is restricted to indicate it is not available for discretionary spending. These
restrictions are generated by external sources including grant agreements, statutes, or bond
covenants. Of the remaining amount $1,117,848 has been assigned for various purposes but
may be reassigned at the option of the governing body. The remaining $724,959 is unassigned
and available for spending at the governing body’s discretion.
The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Winooski. At the end of the current
fiscal year unassigned balance in the general fund was $724,959 and assigned balances were
$690,047. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total general fund expenditures and
transfers. Unassigned fund balance represents 9.60% of the general fund expenditures and
transfers, while total fund balance represents 22.26% of the same amount.
The fund balance of the City of Winooski’s general fund decreased by $174,741 during the
current fiscal year. Key factors in this change are as follows:
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Council assignment of $178,694 of previously unassigned balances to capital projects
which was transferred to the City Capital Reserve Fund.
Council approved payment of $54,500 to the Downtown Winooski, Inc. to allow the
entity to hire an executive director.
Council approved use of $11,000 from previous unassigned balances for equity
training for staff.
Increasing development in the City as a result of new zoning in the gateway districts
and streamlined permitting processes resulted in collection of $41,100 more in
permit fees than anticipated in the budget
A change in the calculated interest on the general fund checking account resulting in
$16,157 in additional investment income than anticipated

Special revenue funds consist of the City of Winooski TIF Downtown Fund, Community
Development Loan Fund, the O’Brien Community Center, Justice Center Grant Fund, JAG Fund
and Asset Forfeiture Fund. The TIF Downtown funds are restricted by bond covenants and state
statute. The Community Development Loan Fund is restricted by grant close‐out agreements.
The O’Brien Community Center is restricted by outside donors. The Justice Center and JAG
funds are restricted by grant agreement. The Asset Forfeiture funds are restricted by Federal
regulations.
The City’s TIF district, created by legislation in 2000, has seen significant development as a result
of the public investment in downtown parking, streets, sidewalks, water, sewer and storm water
systems. Revenues are generated from the tax increment in the downtown TIF district. The
base tax values from the original properties remain in the General Fund and the increment funds
the expenses within this Fund. Additional revenues come from 98% of the Education taxes
collected from that same base, ground leases, land sales and parking revenue in excess of the
cost of the parking garage operating and maintenance needs. The municipal debt continues to
be paid down by the tax increment collected. During fiscal year 2019 as a part of a litigation
settlement the City waived all claims on the outstanding balance of $1,021,874 ground lease
payments in exchange for payment in full of outstanding payments in lieu of taxes and sale of
the ground lease. We continue to experience delays in development of the last remaining
parcels in the district. The City issued a request for proposals for the development of 17 Abenaki
Way to move the process along. Additionally, the while the City has seen delays in the
development of the few remaining parcels in the district, we are in active talks with property
owners and other developers to plan for the full build out of the TIF district. With progress
made on these efforts, the District will generate enough revenue to retire the debt as scheduled.
The Community Development Loan Fund saw minimal activity during the current fiscal year.
There are two active loans that are continuing to be repaid with administrative fees for the
program covered by these funds. No new loans were granted by the Housing Improvement
Program of this fund. The Winooski Small Business Loan Program has been established and two
loans have been awarded totaling $25,500.
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The O’Brien Community Center continues to be an important gathering place in the community.
However, current market and agreement‐based rents cannot cover the operations and debt
costs. When the Center was built, commitments were made that the building would generate
enough revenue to pay its costs and provide the City with enough revenue to make up for the
taxes lost when the building was in private hands. This has not been the case and is not likely in
the foreseeable future. As revenues are not covering the cost of operations and at the
recommendation of our Auditors this service area was moved into the General Fund effective
with the 2019 fiscal year. In fiscal year 2019, this special revenue fund used the remaining
$65,665.71 in reserves to cover the gap between operating costs and the rental revenue of the
Center reducing the balance restricted by donors to $0.
The Community Justice Center is primarily funded through a grant from the State Department of
Corrections and provides important services to the residents of Winooski. This fiscal year was
the first year of a multi‐year award from the Vermont Department of Corrections. Due to
payments from partner agencies participating in training held by the City and a hiring freeze
from the grantor agency, a surplus of $11,422 was carried forward into the new fiscal year. The
City continues to work with our state government and regional partners to ensure these
programs continue.
The JAG grants are only used for equipment purchased using grant funds. In general, revenues
and expenses should be equal for this fund. In fiscal year 2019 we used the funds to purchase a
LIDAR unit and a radar speed sign to assist with traffic patrols.
The Asset Forfeiture fund revenues are received primarily as proportionate shares of cases
worked by the Winooski Police. These funds may only be used for items that supplement our
Police Department and may not be used to supplant any funding provided by the general
government. The City primarily uses these funds for criminal investigations or additional training
capacity.
The City of Winooski maintains a single Capital Fund for governmental capital projects. The
projects for this fund are approved on an annual basis by the governing body of the City. Major
projects completed during the fiscal year included rehabilitation of the railings on the Burlington
Winooski Bridge, the conversion of the City IT to a cloud‐based server and the completion of
final design for the Myers Memorial Pool. Debt repayments are currently included within the
Capital Fund.
Proprietary Funds
The City of Winooski’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government‐wide financial statements, but in more detail.
Unrestricted net position totaled $613,163 for the Water Fund, $872,469 for the Sewer Fund
and $909,504 for the Parking Fund. The change in net position for Water was a decrease of
$36,498, for Sewer a decrease of $184,017 and for Parking a decrease of $14,830. Other factors
concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of
business‐type activities.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The detailed general fund budget approved by voters as adjusted by Council and Manager is
reflected in Schedule 3. The actual expenditures from this budgetary comparison differ from
those reported as general fund in the fund financial statements due to the combining of some
other programs supported by fees with the general fund for financial reporting purposes. The
fund balance for these programs are reported in the fund financial statements as assigned
balances. The programs combined with the General Fund for reporting purposes include the
operating reserve, reimbursable activities, public art program, community service programs,
community development, rental registry program and hazmat reserve.
Differences between budgeted and actual amounts for the General Fund as approved by voters
and as amended by Council and Manager can be summarized as follows:
 Approximately $43,900 in additional permits were received during the year as part
of increasing development in the City
 Additional investment income of $16,157 from due to changes in interest rates on
the general fund checking account.
 Insurance refunds and reimbursements of $10,500 were received but unbudgeted
 Receipt of unbudgeted grant revenues totaling $78,814 was received to fund the
development of the municipal plan, wayfinding and the offset employee costs to
run the homework help program and police occupant protection and DUI
checkpoints
 Additional Worker’s Compensation costs of $33,651 for the fire department
following an audit of the 2018 payroll audit
 Additional wage and benefits costs of $53,260 in the police department due to staff
turnover requiring payout of accrued time and coverage of the vacancy with
overtime.
 City Council approved the use of $11,000 in FY18 reserves by the Administrative
Department for staff equity training.
 City Council approved the use of $54,497 in FY18 reserves to be paid from the
Regional Programs department to Downtown Winooski, Inc to aid in the hiring of
an executive director for the organization.
 City Council approved an additional transfer of $178,694 of FY18 reserves to the
Capital Fund
Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets
The City of Winooski’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business‐type
activities as of June 30, 2019 totaled $30,611,535 net of accumulated depreciation and related
debt. This net investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, vehicles
and equipment, roads, bridges and other infrastructure, water and wastewater distribution and
collection systems, the parking garage and construction in progress. The net investment in
12

capital assets increased by 13.44% for governmental activities and decreased 1.88% for
business‐type activities.
Major capital asset projects completed during the fiscal year included the following:





Construction of a garage at the Wastewater Treatment Plant $352,663
Installation of a natural gas generator at the Wastewater Treatment Plant $150,152;
plus $42,355 in FY18 work in progress
Rehab of the Burlington/Winooski Bridge Rails $172,036
Completion of a Cloud Server solution to connect all City facilities and staff to the
same network $65,245
Investment in Capital Assets

Land
Building and Improvements
Vehicles, Machinery, and Equipment
Infrastructure
Distribution and Collection Systems
Parking Garage
Construction in Progress
Total Assets

Governmental
Activities
$
1,709,520
6,667,271
3,885,092
33,823,425
‐
‐
539,056
$
46,624,364

2019
Business‐type
Activities
647,573
‐
1,873,478
‐
19,098,115
15,284,213
683,370
37,586,749

Total
2,357,093 $
6,667,271
5,758,570
33,823,425
19,098,115
15,284,213
1,222,426
84,211,113 $

Governmental
Activities
2,241,446
6,625,318
3,692,548
33,618,889
‐
‐
178,512
46,356,713

2018
Business‐type
Activities
647,573
‐
1,866,204
‐
18,468,069
15,284,213
382,655
36,648,714

Total
2,889,019
6,625,318
5,558,752
33,618,889
18,468,069
15,284,213
561,167
83,005,427

Additional information on the City of Winooski’s investment in capital assets can be found in
note IV.D. of the notes to the financial statements
Long Term Debt
At the end of the current year, the City of Winooski had total long‐term debt outstanding of
$17,109,715. Of this amount $12,632,658 is TIF related debt that is to be repaid using the tax
increment generated by properties within the district and any other related revenues as
specified in the bond and promissory notes.
The City of Winooski’s total debt decreased by $1,634,392 during the year, reflecting
repayments on existing debt of $2,607,407, new bond debt of $888,365 for a pool BAN,
Wastewater garage construction, headworks facility and Main Street preliminary engineering
and new capital lease debt of $84,650 for the purchase of the fingerprint scanner, new police
administrative vehicle and fire command vehicle.
State statutes limit the amount of bonded debt any governmental entity may issue to 10 times
its total assessed valuation. The debt limit in fiscal year 2019 for the City of Winooski was
$5,681,406,270 which is significantly in excess of the City’s outstanding bonded debt.
Bonds are issued through the Vermont Municipal Bond Bank. The City issues no bonded debt on
its own behalf and does not maintain its own credit rating.
13

Additional information regarding the long‐term debt of the City can be found in note IV.G. of the
notes to the financial statements.
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates




2% COLA estimated in FY21.
FY20 budget was built assuming a 2% COLA which actually came out as 1.5%
Public Works union contract was recently settled including a tiered COLA plan and a
tiered COLA plan was previously adopted for the Police union contract
 Health insurance increasing by 10.4% for January 2020
 Modest Grand List growth of .8%
All of these factors were considered in the preparation of the City of Winooski’s budget for the
2021 fiscal year.
The City of Winooski approved a general fund budget for fiscal year 2020 in the amount of
$7,303,506. This represents an increase of $605,517 or 9.04% over the approved budget for the
previous year. Of this increase $458,223 or 5% is directly attributable to the voter approved
capital projects for the Winooski Pool Reconstruction and Main Street Revitalization. Additional
revenue, other than taxes, generated local option tax approved by voters in March 2019 was
added for $277,019 to offset the additional expenses. The budget for the general fund does not
includes the budgets for programs supported by fees, special revenue funds, or proprietary
funds. City Council approved rate increases for the Water Fund from $38.67 to $39.64 per
1000cf with a minimum bill of 500cf, for the Wastewater Fund from $48.57 to $50.03 per 1000cf
and the Parking Fund increases were limited to those outlined in existing contracts.
Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Winooski, Vermont’s
finances for all those with an interest in the City’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to the City Treasurer, City of Winooski, 27 West Allen Street, Winooski, VT 05404.
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STATEMENT A
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019
Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables (Net of Allowance for
Uncollectibles)
Notes Receivable
Interest Receivable
Prepaid Expenses
Inventory
Internal Balances
Capital Assets
Land
Construction in Progress
Other Capital Assets, (Net of
Accumulated Depreciation)
Total Assets

$

5,225,810

Primary Government
Business-type
Activities

$

1,020,074

$

Total

Component Unit
Winooski Community
Development Trust

6,245,884

$

172,567
1,966,488
228,771
829
(1,609,921)

646,043
12,466
1,609,921

818,609
1,966,488
241,237
829
0

1,709,520
539,056
21,929,206

647,573
683,370
21,084,298

2,357,093
1,222,426
43,013,504

‐
‐
‐
1,098,000
483,300
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

$

30,162,326

$

25,703,745

$

55,866,070

$

1,581,300

Bond Refunding Costs, Net of Amortization
Deferred Outflow - Pension Participation in VMERS

$

709,753
613,972

$

74,379

$

709,753
688,351

$

‐
‐

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

$

1,323,725

$

74,379

$

1,398,104

$

-

$

362,839
163,051
6,560
51,327
483,300

$

252,091
113,402
4,710

$

614,930
163,051
119,962
56,037
483,300

$

‐
‐
‐
‐

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Benefits Payable
Unearned Revenue
Accrued Interest Payable
Accrued Interest Payable - Component Unit
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Unearned Revenue
Net Pension Liability
Note Payable - Component Unit
Due within One Year
Due in More than One Year
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Prepaid Property Taxes
Deferred Inflow - Pension Participation in VMERS
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

1,147,960
1,098,000
2,228,262
12,672,705

276,923
1,287,028
1,098,000
2,436,796
13,839,455

208,534
1,166,750

‐
‐
‐
‐

$

18,214,004

$

2,161,479

$

20,375,482

$

-

$

3,057
61,224

$

7,417

$

3,057
68,641

$

‐
‐

$

64,281

$

7,417

$

71,698

$

-

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted For:
Downtown Project and Debt Service
Community Development
Public Safety
Sewer Expansion
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

276,923
139,068

$

9,521,092

21,090,444

30,611,535

2,128,819
1,043,228
70,107
444,520

123,648
2,395,136

2,128,819
1,043,228
70,107
123,648
2,839,656

13,207,766

$

23,609,227

$

36,816,993

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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‐
‐
1,581,300
‐
‐
‐

$

1,581,300

STATEMENT B
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position
Primary Government

Program Revenues

Expenses
Functions/Programs:
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Community Development
Interest on Long-term Debt

$

Total Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities:
Water
Sewer
Parking Garage
Total Business-Type Activities
Total Primary Government
Component Unit:
Winooski Community Development Trust

Operating
Grants and
Contributions

Charges for
Services

Capital
Grants and
Contributions

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

Component Unit
Winooski Community
Development Trust

Total

1,807,130
3,458,516
2,494,444
873,125
1,437,867
798,060

387,973
477,174
286,830
413,653
829,264
-

143,287
0
66,516
20,000
-

- $
154,731
-

(1,419,157) $
(2,838,055)
(2,052,883)
(392,956)
(588,603)
(798,060)

- $
-

(1,419,157) $
(2,838,055)
(2,052,883)
(392,956)
(588,603)
(798,060)

-

10,869,142

2,394,894

229,803

154,731

(8,089,714)

-

(8,089,714)

-

890,956
1,262,223
1,150,995

847,052
1,050,518
1,246,362

535
1,098
-

16,804
-

-

(43,368)
(193,804)
95,368

(43,368)
(193,804)
95,368

-

3,304,174

3,143,933

1,633

16,804

-

(141,804)

(141,804)

-

(8,231,518) $

-

$

14,173,316 $

5,538,827 $

231,436 $

171,535 $

$

150,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

(150,000)

150,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

(150,000)

Property Taxes
Interest and Penalties on Delinquent Taxes
Unrestricted Investment Earnings
Other Revenues
Interfund Transfers
Total General Revenues and Transfers

$

(8,089,714) $

(141,804) $

8,179,794
14,939
33,025
34,470
110,197

16,656
(110,197)

8,179,794
14,939
49,681
34,470
-

76,860
-

8,372,425

(93,541)

8,278,884

76,860

282,712

(235,345)

47,366

(73,140)

12,925,054

23,844,573

36,769,627

1,654,440

13,207,766 $

23,609,228 $

36,816,994 $

1,581,300

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENT C
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019
Nonmajor
Funds

Major Funds
Community
Development Loan
Fund

TIF
Downtown
Fund

General
Fund

City Capital
Reserve
Fund

Other
Governmental
Funds

Total

ASSETS
Cash
Receivables (Net of Allowance
for Uncollectibles)
Prepaid Expenses
Inventory
Due from Other Funds
Notes Receivable (Net of Allowance)
TOTAL ASSETS

$

3,650,767

$

165,067
228,719
829
-

970,770

$

1,500,000

601,093

$

400
466,488

-

$

7,500
564,734
-

3,180

$

52
67,365
-

5,225,810
172,567
228,771
829
632,499
1,966,488

$

4,045,382

$

2,470,770

$

1,067,980

$

572,234

$

70,597

$

8,226,964

$

189,698
163,051
1,903,935
6,560

$

3,465
338,486
-

$

24,752
-

$

144,433
-

$

490
-

$

362,839
163,051
2,242,420
6,560

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Payroll Taxes
Due to Other Funds
Unearned Revenue
Total Liabilities

2,263,243

341,951

24,752

144,433

490

2,774,869

3,057

-

-

-

-

3,057

37,717
59,964
-

1,500,000
-

466,488
-

-

-

37,717
2,026,451
-

100,738

1,500,000

466,488

-

-

2,067,226

229,548
36,847
690,047
724,959

628,819
-

576,740
-

427,801
-

52
70,055
-

229,600
1,312,462
1,117,848
724,959

1,681,401

628,819

576,740

427,801

70,107

3,384,869

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Prepaid Property Taxes
Unavailable Property Taxes, Penalties
and Interest
Unavailable Receivables
Unavailable Grant Revenue
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

$

4,045,382

$

2,470,770

$

1,067,980

$

572,234

$

70,597

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENT D
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019
Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position are Different Because:
Capital Assets Used in Governmental Activities are not Financial Resources and, Therefore, are not Reported in the Funds.

24,177,781

Other Assets are not Available to Pay for Current-Period Expenditures and, Therefore, are Reported as Deferred Inflows
of Resources in the Funds

2,064,169

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to the City's Participation in VMERS are applicable to Future Periods and
Therefore, are not Reported in the Funds

552,748

Unamortized Bond Refunding Costs are not Financial Resources and Therefore, are not Reported in the Funds

709,753
(17,681,554)

Long-Term and Accrued Liabilities are not Due or Payable in the Current Period and, Therefore, are Not Reported in the Funds.
Net Position of Governmental Activities

$

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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13,207,766

STATEMENT E
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
Nonmajor
Funds

Major Funds

Revenue:
Property Taxes/PILOT
Charges for Services
Investment Income
Intergovernmental
Fees, Fines and Forfeits
Rent & Lease Income
Licenses & Permits
Donations
Loan Repayments
Cascade Unit Sales Profit Sharing
Other

$

Total Revenue

Community
Development Loan
Fund

TIF
Downtown
Fund

General
Fund
5,468,414
533,656
23,936
193,191
279,101
230,594
17,673
4,279
342,507

$

2,711,368
102,514
25,135
1,050,000

$

325
5,033
-

City Capital
Reserve
Fund
$

333,772
15,760

Other
Governmental
Funds
$

173,097
980

Total
$

8,179,782
533,656
126,775
700,060
279,101
255,729
17,673
4,279
5,033
1,409,247

7,093,351

3,889,017

5,358

349,532

174,077

11,511,336

1,026,442
2,281,829
535,695
531,187
560,206
1,374,311
290,002
115,761

156,666
247,335

27,005

33,060
255,793
11,698
-

152,954
-

1,216,168
2,434,783
791,488
531,187
571,903
1,374,311
290,002
390,101

-

-

-

177,494
251,255
447,203

-

177,494
251,255
447,203

110,000
55,331

2,167,627
806,227

-

181,277
48,454

-

2,458,905
910,011

6,880,763

3,377,855

27,005

1,406,235

152,954

11,844,812

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenue
Over Expenditures

212,589

511,162

(21,647)

(1,056,703)

21,123

(333,476)

Other Financing Sources/(Uses):
Debt Proceeds
Transfers In
Transfers Out

284,795
(672,124)

110,197
(219,129)

-

289,650
659,510
-

12,614
(65,666)

289,650
1,067,117
(956,920)

(387,330)

(108,932)

-

949,160

(53,052)

399,847

(174,741)

402,230

(21,647)

(107,543)

(31,929)

66,371

226,588

598,386

535,344

102,036

Expenditures:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture & Recreation
Public Buildings & Facilities
Employee Benefits
Regional Programs
Community Development
Capital Outlay:
Public Safety
Public Works
Public Buildings & Facilities
Debt Service:
Bond and Note Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures

Total Other Financing
Sources/(Uses)
Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenue
and Other Financing Sources Over
Expenditures and Other
Financing/(Uses)
Fund Balances - July 1, 2018
Fund Balances - June 30, 2019

1,856,141
$

1,681,400

$

628,818

$

576,739

$

427,801

$

70,107

3,318,495
$

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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3,384,866

STATEMENT F
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (Exhibit B) are
different because:
Net change in fund balances - total government funds (Exhibit D)

$

66,371

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of those assets ($875,953) is allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense ($1,238,220). This is the amount by
which depreciation expense exceeded capital outlays in the current period.

(362,267)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, loss on disposals and donations) is to increase net position.

(536,749)

Governmental funds report bond refunding costs as expenditures in the year in which they occur
However, in the Statement of Activites, these costs are recorded as deferred outflows of resources
and recognized over the life of the new debt issuance.

(141,950)

The issuance of long-term debt ($289,650) (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt ($2,458,905)
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however;
has any effect on net position. The amount is the net effect of these differencees in the treatment
of long-term debt and related items

2,169,255

Governmental funds report employer pension contributions as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of pension benefits earned net of employee contributions is reported as pension expense. This
amount is the net effect of the differences in the treatment of pension expense

(144,615)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds. This amount reflects the decrease
of unearned and unavailable revenue over last year.

(957,627)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

190,294

Change in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit B)

$

282,712

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENT G
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019
Water
Fund

Sewer
Fund

Parking
Fund

Total

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles)
Due from Other Funds
Prepaid Expenses

$

Total Current Assets

$

701,326

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Land
Construction in Progress
Machinery and Equipment
Buildings, Distribution/Collection Systems & Improvements
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

190,519
425,919
5,270,981
(2,585,291)

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

405,684
247,890
47,595
157

3,302,128
$

4,003,454

614,390
393,762
234,623
6,848

$

$

1,020,074
646,043
1,609,921
12,466

1,249,623

1,337,555

3,288,504

77,604
492,851
1,024,215
13,827,134
(7,955,493)

569,969
423,343
15,284,213
(4,630,723)

647,573
683,370
1,873,477
34,382,328
(15,171,507)

7,466,311
$

4,391
1,327,703
5,461

8,715,934

11,646,802
$

12,984,357

22,415,241
$

25,703,745

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflow - Pension Participation in VMERS
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Total Assests and Deferred Outflows of Resources

20,561

37,491

16,327

74,379

$

20,561

$

37,491

16,327

74,379

$

4,024,015

$

8,753,425

13,000,684

25,778,123

$

48,649
2,304
5,027
37,290

$

191,675
2,406
158,111

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Benefits Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Unearned Revenue - Current Portion
General Obligation Bonds Payable - Current Portion
Due to Champlain Water District Current Portion

$

11,767
108,375
-

$

252,091
4,710
113,402
195,400

13,134

-

-

13,134

106,404

352,192

120,142

578,737

12,250
38,443
265,874
129,297

23,079
70,098
721,093
-

15,157
30,527
276,923
-

50,486
139,068
276,923
986,967
129,297

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

445,864

814,270

322,607

1,582,741

Total Liabilities

552,268

1,166,462

442,749

2,161,479

Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences Payable
Net Pension Liability
Unearned Revenue - Noncurrent Portion
General Obligation Bonds Payable - Noncurrent Portion
Due to Champlain Water District - Noncurrent Portion

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflow - Pension Participation in VMERS
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

2,050

3,739

1,628

7,417

2,050

3,739

1,628

7,417

554,318

1,170,201

444,377

2,168,896

2,856,534
613,163

6,587,108
123,648
872,469

11,646,802
909,504

21,090,444
123,648
2,395,136

3,469,697

7,583,224

12,556,307

23,609,228

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Sewer Improvements-Expendable
Unrestricted
Total Net Position
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and
Net Position

$

4,024,015

$

8,753,424

$

13,000,684

$

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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25,778,124

STATEMENT H
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
Water
Fund
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Service

$

Total Operating Revenues

Sewer
Fund

847,588

$

Parking
Fund

1,068,419

$

1,246,362

Total
$

3,162,369

847,588

1,068,419

1,246,362

3,162,369

218,682
408,061
12,846
73,534
6,348
30,472
3,455
126,229

500,273
172,388
62,910
72,678
59,904
50,593
327,296

248,721
100,659
106,892
39,721
96,370
203,132
354,676

967,677
408,061
285,893
243,336
118,747
186,746
257,180
808,201

879,627

1,246,042

1,150,171

3,275,841

Operating Income

(32,039)

(177,623)

96,191

(113,472)

Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses):
Loss on Disposition of Assets
Gain on Sale of Assets
Investment Income
Interest Expense

6,870
(11,329)

9,786
(16,181)

(824)

16,656
(28,334)

(4,459)

(6,395)

(824)

(11,678)

(36,498)

(184,017)

95,367

(125,148)

-

-

(110,197)
-

(110,197)
-

(36,498)

(184,017)

(14,830)

(235,345)

3,506,195

7,767,241

12,571,137

23,844,573

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and Benefits
Water Purchases
Purchased Services
Repairs and Maintenance
Electricity and Fuel
Administration
Other
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Total Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses)
Net Income Before Capital Contributions
and Transfers
Transfers Out
Capital Contributions
Change in Net Position
Net Position - July 1, 2018
Net Position - June 30, 2019

$

3,469,697

$

7,583,224

$

12,556,307

$

23,609,228

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENT I
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
Water
Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers and Users
Payments to Suppliers
Payments for Wages and Benefits
Paid to General Fund - Administration

$

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

852,931
(509,229)
(222,494.81)
(30,472)

Sewer
Fund

$

977,366
(254,080)
(499,930)
(59,904)

Parking
Fund

$

Total

1,201,895
(444,348)
(239,082)
(96,370)

$

3,032,192
(1,207,657)
(961,507)
(186,746)

90,736

163,452

422,095

676,283

(39,212)

112,992

(309,954)

(236,174)

(39,212)

112,992

(309,954)

(236,174)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Grant Contributions
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets
Proceeds from Sales of Capital Assets
Debt Proceeds
Transfers to Other Funds
Principal Paid
Interest Paid

(85,373)
95,192
(50,317)
(11,282)

(851,542)
588,173
(98,186)
(15,075)

(1,119)
(110,197)
(824)

(938,034)
683,365
(110,197)
(148,503)
(27,180)

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities

(51,780)

(376,630)

(112,141)

(540,550)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipt of Interest & Dividends

6,870

9,786

-

16,657

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

6,870

9,786

-

16,657

6,615

(90,399)

-

(83,785)

399,069

704,790

-

1,103,859

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease/(Increase) in Due from Other Funds
Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Noncapital
Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash
Cash - July 1, 2018
Cash - June 30, 2019

$

405,684

$

614,391

$

-

$

1,020,074

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income
Depreciation
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Prepaid Expenses
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase/(Decrease) in Accrued Payroll
Increase/(Decrease) in Unearned Revenue
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Pension Liability and Related Deferrals
Increase/(Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

(32,039)
126,229
316
115
(5,100)
(6,447)
5,027
5,442
(2,808)
$

90,736

(177,623)
327,296
(91,054)
(6,241)
110,730
(11,426)
0
7,806
3,964
$

163,452

96,191
354,676
25,300
(631)
6,686
(5,710)
(69,767)
7,051
8,298
$

422,094

(113,471)
808,201
(65,437)
(6,758)
112,316
(23,583)
(64,740)
20,299
9,454
$

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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676,281

CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019
The City of Winooski, Vermont (herein the "City") is a municipal corporation operating under a
council-manager form of government. It is governed by five (5) elected officials – a mayor and
four (4) council members. The City Council appoints a City Manager to oversee the general
operations of the City and a Treasurer as independent financial oversight.
The City provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public safety (police, fire
and animal control), highways and streets, culture and recreation, community and economic
development, planning and zoning, water, wastewater, parking and general administrative
services.
I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies adopted by the City conform to generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as applicable to governmental entities. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting
principles. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies employed in
the preparation of these financial statements.
A. The Financial Reporting Entity
This report includes all of the activity of the City of Winooski, Vermont. The financial reporting
entity consists of the primary government; organizations for which the primary government is
financially accountable; and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the primary government are such that their exclusion would cause the reporting
entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Component units are legally
separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are financially
accountable. The primary government is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority
of the organization’s governing body and it is able to impose its will on that organization or there
is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or burdens on the
primary government. The primary government is financially accountable if an organization is
fiscally dependent on the primary government and there is potential for the organization to
provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the primary
government regardless of whether the organization has a separately elected governing board; a
governing board appointed by a higher level of government; or a jointly appointed bard. The
Winooski Community Development Corporation Trust is the only entity that meets this
definition and, as a discretely presented component unit, is reported in a separate column in the
government-wide financial statement to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City.
Based on these criteria, there are no other entities that should be combined with the financial
statements of the City.
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CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019
B. Basis of Presentation
The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of fund accounting. A fund is
an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a separate set of self-balancing accounts which
comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as
appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based
upon the purposes for which they are spent and the means by which spending activities are
controlled.
The basic financial statements of the City include both government-wide statements and fund
financial statements. The focus of the government-wide statements is on reporting the operating
results and financial position of the City as a whole and presenting a longer-term view of the
City’s finances. The focus of the fund financial statements is on reporting on the operating
results and financial position of the most significant funds of the City and presenting a shorterterm view of how operations were financed and what remains available for future spending.
Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities
display information about the primary government, the City. These statements include the
financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have
been made to minimize the double counting of activities between funds. These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other
nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties.
The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for each function of the City’s governmental activities and for each segment of the City’s
business-type activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function or program.
Program revenues include (a) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the
programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues,
including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.
Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s
funds. Separate statements for each fund category – governmental and proprietary – are
presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise
funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated
and reported as non-major funds.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019
The City reports on the following major governmental funds:
General Fund – This is the City’s main operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those accounted for in another fund.
TIF Downtown Fund – This special revenue fund is used to account for all expenditures,
revenues, and debt service related to the tax increment financing (TIF) district.
Community Development Loan Fund – This special revenue fund accounts for all
housing grant and loan projects.
City Capital Reserve Fund – This capital project fund accounts for governmental fund
capital expenditures and related debt service.
The City reports on the following major enterprise funds:
Water Fund – This fund accounts for the operations of the Water Department.
Sewer Fund – This fund accounts for the operations of the Wastewater and Stormwater
Departments.
Parking Fund – This accounts for operations of the City Parking Infrastructure.
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in
which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as
subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.
C. Measurement Focus
The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. Government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus. This means that all assets, deferred outflows
of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources associated with the operation of these
funds (whether current or noncurrent) are included on the balance sheet (or statement of net
position). Equity (i.e., net position) is segregated into invested in capital assets, net of related
debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. Operating statements present
increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in total net position.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus. This means that only current assets and deferred outflow of resources and
current liabilities and deferred inflows of resources are generally reported on their balance
sheets. Their reported fund balances (net current assets) are considered a measure of available
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spendable resources, and are segregated into nonspendable; restricted; committed; assigned and
unassigned amounts. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and
other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current
assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of available
spendable resources during a period.
D. Basis of Accounting
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time
the liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flow takes place. Nonexchange
transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving)
equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On the
accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are
levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
Governmental funds are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. “Measurable” means the
amount of the transaction can be determined, and “available” means the amount is collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current
period. The City considers all revenues reported in governmental funds to be available if the
revenues are collected within sixty (60) days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the
related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt,
certain compensated absences and other long-term liabilities which are recognized when the
obligations are expected to be liquidated or are funded with expendable available financial
resources.
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds
of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing
sources.
Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of
specific cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are
incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net positions available to finance the program.
It is the City’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs,
followed by general revenues. Expenditure driven grants are recognized as revenue when the
qualifying expenditures have been incurred and other grant requirements have been met.
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JUNE 30, 2019
Recognition of revenues on funds received in connection with the loan programs are recognized
when loans are awarded and expenses incurred in excess of current grants and program income.
An offsetting amount in deferred inflows of resources is recognized for all loans receivable.
Loan repayment revenue is recognized as loans are repaid.
E. Use of Estimates
The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.
F. Implementation of New Accounting Standards
Statement No. 83 “Certain Asset Retirement Obligations.” This Statement establishes criteria for
determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred
outflow of resources for AROs. This Statement requires that recognition occur when the liability
is both incurred and reasonably estimable. The determination of when the liability is incurred
should be based on the occurrence of external laws, regulations, contracts, or court judgments,
together with the occurrence of an internal event that obligates a government to perform asset
retirement activities. Laws and regulations may require governments to take specific actions to
retire certain tangible capital assets at the end of the useful lives of those capital assets, such as
decommissioning nuclear reactors and dismantling and removing sewage treatment plants. Other
obligations to retire tangible capital assets may arise from contracts or court judgments. Internal
obligating events include the occurrence of contamination, placing into operation a tangible
capital asset that is required to be retired, abandoning a tangible capital asset before it is placed
into operation, or acquiring a tangible capital asset that has an existing ARO. This Statement
also requires disclosure of information about the nature of a government’s AROs, the methods
and assumptions used for the estimates of the liabilities, and the estimated remaining useful life
of the associated tangible capital assets. If an ARO (or portions thereof) has been incurred by a
government but is not yet recognized because it is not reasonably estimable, the government is
required to disclose that fact and the reasons therefor. This Statement requires similar disclosures
for a government’s minority shares of AROs. Management has determined the impact of this
Statement is not material to the financial statements.
Statement No. 88 “Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct
Placements.” This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to financial
statements as a liability that arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that
may be used in lieu of cash) in one or more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date
the contractual obligation is established. This Statement requires that additional essential
information related to debt be disclosed in notes to financial statements, including unused lines
of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms specified in debt agreements related
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to significant events of default with finance-related consequences, significant termination events
with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration clauses. Management
has determined the impact of this Statement is not material to the financial statements.
G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity
1. Cash
Cash balances of most City funds are deposited with and invested by the City Treasurer. The
City considers all short-term investments of ninety (90) days or less to be cash equivalents.
2. Investments
The City invests its operating and capital reserve funds as allowed by State Statute and in
compliance with the City’s own approved investment policy. Investment funds are collateralized
by the investment institution or brokerage firm to ensure that all city funds and revenues are
secure in accordance with applicable laws and policies. Investments with readily determinable
fair values are reported at fair value on the balance sheet. Unrealized gains and losses are
reported within applicable financial statements and included in the appropriate revenue category.
The City’s investment program encompasses all classes of revenues and funds and is reviewed
on an ongoing basis to determine compliance and accountability.
3. Receivables
Receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts for the estimated losses
that will be incurred in the collection of the receivables. The estimated losses are based on the
judgment of management and a review of the current status of existing receivables.
4. Internal Balances
Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements that are
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “Advances to/from Other Funds”. Any
residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”. Cash balances
deposited and invested by the Treasurer in a combined cash account are reported as “Due to/from
Other Funds”.
Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund
reserve account (nonspendable fund balance) in the applicable funds to indicate that they are not
available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.
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5. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses
Inventory quantities are determined by physical count and are valued at the lower of cost or
market.
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs that are applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid expenses.
Reported inventories and prepaid expenses of governmental funds in the fund financial
statements are offset by a nonspendable fund balance as they are not in spendable form.
6. Capital Assets
Capital assets are reported at actual cost or estimated historical cost based on appraisals or
deflated current replacement cost if purchased or constructed. Contributed assets are recorded at
their estimated acquisition value at the time received. Major outlays for capital assets and
improvements are capitalized as constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase for
proprietary fund capital assets is reflected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of
any interest earned on the invested proceeds during the same period. Interest is not capitalized
during the construction phase of capital assets used in governmental activities. The cost of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the
assets’ lives are not capitalized.
The City has elected to report major general infrastructure
assets retroactively.
Capital assets reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are
depreciated in order that the cost of these assets will be charged to expenses over their estimated
service lives, generally using the straight-line method of calculating depreciation.
Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions must added to the
capital asset accounts) and estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:

Capitalization
Threshold
Land
Buildings and Building Improvements
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment
Roads, Bridges, and Sidewalks
Water and Wastewater Distribution and
and Collection Systems

$

30

Estimated
Service Life

10,000
20,000
3,000
20,000

Not Depreciated
10-75 Years
3-20 Years
20-75 Years

20,000

20-75 Years

CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019
Capital assets are not reported in the governmental fund financial statements. Capital outlays in
these funds are recorded as expenditures in the year they are acquired.
7. Deferred Inflows/Deferred Outflows
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, “deferred outflows
of resources”, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditures) until then. These
amounts are deferred and recognized as an outflow of resources in the future periods to which
they are related.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, “deferred
inflows of resources”, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s)
and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. These amounts
are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the future periods to which the amounts
are related or when the amounts become available
8. Compensated Absences
It is the policy of the City of Winooski to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused
vacation or CTO, comp-time and sick leave benefits. The entire value of vacation or CTO and
comp-time leave is paid upon termination. Sick leave has no cash value upon separation from
the City. No expenditure is reported for these amounts until paid, except in the Proprietary
Funds.
9. Pensions
The net pension liability is the difference between the total pension liability (the present value of
projected benefit payments to employees based on their past service) and the assets (mostly
investments reported at fair value) set aside to pay current employees, retirees, and beneficiaries.
The accrual for the City’s share of the net pension liability is recorded in the government-wide
financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements.
For purposes of measuring the proportionate share of the net pension liability and the related
deferred outflows and inflows of resources and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Vermont Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (VMERS) pension plan
and additions to or deductions from the VMERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on
the same basis as they are reported by VMERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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10. Long-term Liabilities
Long-term liabilities include bonds, notes payable, capital leases payable and other obligations
such as compensated absences and the City’s net pension liability. Long-term liabilities are
reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. Governmental fund
financial statements do not include any long-term liabilities as those funds use the current
financial resources measurement focus and only include current liabilities on their balance
sheets.
11. Fund Equity
Fund Balances and Net Position are classified based upon any restrictions that have been placed
on those balances or any tentative plans management may have made for those balances.
Restrictions of net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund type financial
statements represent amounts that cannot be appropriated or are legally restricted for a specific
purpose by a grant, contract, or other binding agreement. Fund Balances of governmental funds
are classified as nonspendable (not in spendable form or legally required to remain intact);
restricted (constraints on the use of resources are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors,
or donors, or imposed by law through enabling legislation); committed (constraints on the use of
resources are imposed by formal action of the voters); assigned (reflecting the City Council’s
intended use of the resources); and unassigned.
II. EXPLANATION OF DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL FUND AND
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS
Governmental Fund financial statements are presented using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting, whereas government-wide
financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. These differences in the measurement focus and basis of accounting
lead to differences between the governmental fund financial statements and the government-wide
financial statements as follows:
Long-term revenue differences arise because governmental funds report revenues only when
they are considered “available,” whereas government-wide statements report revenues when they
are earned. Long-term expense differences arise because governmental funds report operating
expenses including interest using the modified accrual basis of accounting, whereas governmentwide statements report expenses using the accrual basis of accounting.
Capital-related differences arise because governmental funds report capital outlays as current
period expenditures, whereas government-wide statements report depreciation as an expense.
Further, governmental funds report the proceeds from the sale of capital assets as another
financing source, whereas government-wide statements report the gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets as revenue or expense.
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Long-term debt transaction differences arise because governmental funds report long-term debt
proceeds as other financing sources and principal payments as expenditures, whereas
government-wide statements report those transactions as increases and decreases in liabilities,
respectively.
Pension-related differences arise because governmental funds report the current year’s required
employer contribution as current period expenditures, whereas government-wide statements
report those transactions as deferred outflows of resources. In addition, the accrual for the City’s
proportionate share of net pension liability is recorded in the government-wide financial
statements along with the related deferred inflows and outflows of resources.
III. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgetary Information
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:
1.

Annually in December, the City Manager submits to the City Council a
proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following
July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the
means of financing them.

2.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

3.

The City Council adopts the budget.

4.

The budget is presented to the voters for approval at the March annual
City meeting.

5.

The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within each
function. In fiscal year 2019 the City Manager authorized one budget
transfer. The transfer was to combine the Youth Programs and Thrive
Program budgets into a single department under Youth Programs to reflect
the structure of our payroll program. Any revisions that alter the total
budgeted amounts of any function must be approved by the City Council.
In fiscal year 2019 Council approved one budget transfer reallocating
funds budgeted as contingency for wage changes associated with
implementing a revised compensation plan for non-union staff. This
transfer was approved at the Council’s January 7, 2019 City Council
Meeting.
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6.

The budget presented in schedule 3 is for the City’s “General Fund” only
and does not include the Reimbursables Fund, the Public Art Fund, the
City Operating Reserve Fund, the Fire Hazmat Fund, the Community
Services Program Fund, and the Community Development Reserve Fund
activity that is included with the General Fund.

B. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations
For the year ended June 30, 2019, expenditures in the General Fund exceeded appropriations by
$286,126. These over expenditures were funded with excess revenues and prior year fund
balances assigned by Council during public meetings.
IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. Cash
The City’s cash as of June 30, 2019 consisted of the following:
Cash:
Cash on Hand
Cash with Financial Institutions
Total Cash

$

4,737
6,241,147

$

6,245,844

Custodial Credit Risk
The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit
risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of failure of the counter-party to a transaction
(e.g. broker-dealer), a government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or
collateral securities that are in possession of another party. The City does not have any policy to
limit the exposure to custodial credit risk.

34

CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019
The following table shows the custodial credit risk of the City’s deposits.
Book
Balance
FDIC/SIPC/NCUA Insured
Insured by Letter of Credit Issued by
Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh
Insured by Letter of Credit Issued by
Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston
Collateralized by Pledged Securities
from Peoples United Bank
Uninsured Uncollateralized

$

Total Cash Deposits

$

Bank
Balance

976,555

$

976,555

4,751,043

5,009,596

351,093

351,093

147,643
14,813

147,643
14,813

6,241,147

$

6,499,700

The difference between the book and the bank balance is due to reconciling items such as
deposits in transit and outstanding checks.
B. Receivables
Receivables at June 30, 2019, as reported in the statement of net position, net of applicable
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows.

Delinquent Taxes
Penalties and Interest
Billed Services
Unbilled Services
Grants
Aid in Expansion Fees
Parking Tickets
Other
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts ‐ Property Taxes
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts ‐ Billed Services
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts ‐ Parking Tickets
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts ‐ Other

Governmental
Activity

Business‐type
Activity

$

$

$

35

68,004
10,053
52,347
‐
14,787
‐
297,054
9,095
(711)
(28,614)
(248,707)
(741)
172,567

$

‐
‐
17,815
435,638
69,659
126,490
‐
1,690
‐
(4,622)
‐
(627)
646,043

Total
$ 68,004
10,053
70,162
435,638
84,446
126,490
297,054
10,785
(711)
(33,236)
(248,707)
(1,368)
$ 818,610
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C. Loans and Notes Receivable
Loans, with a balance of $23,790.63, were issued by the City's H.I.P. Program to qualifying
residents for improvements to property at interest rates ranging from three (3%) to nine (9%)
percent. These loans will be paid back in one (1) to twenty (20) years and re-loaned to new
qualifying applicants. The City believes the loans are collectible as all are secured by real estate
mortgage.
Loans, with a balance of $210,800, were issued to Champlain Housing Trust for cooperative
housing at 0% interest and to be repaid upon sale of the projects and are secured by mortgages.
The City does not believe these loans are collectible so an allowance for doubtful accounts of
$210,800 has been recorded.
The City has a $1,500,000 note receivable from HK Central Block Limited Partnership. This
note is secured by real estate and is to assist in building affordable housing in Winooski. The
source of the money for the loan was from a Federal grant. Interest is at 0% and the note is due
December 31, 2035. The City believes the loan is collectible and has discounted it to present
value of $442,697.06 at June 30, 2019 using a 5% discount rate.
The City has a $740,000 note receivable from Canal Street Housing Limited Partnership. The
note is secured by real estate and was loaned to provide affordable veterans housing. The source
of the funds was a Federal grant. Interest is at 0% and the note is due April 2, 2040. If all terms
are met by the borrower, this loan will likely be forgiven at the due date. Therefore, an
allowance for doubtful accounts of $740,000 has been recorded.
The City has a $370,000 note receivable from City Neighborhoods HLP. The City loaned the
funds for the acquisition and rehabilitation of ten (10) affordable housing units. The source of
the money for the loan was from a Federal grant. Interest is at 0% and the note is due in 2042. If
all terms are met by the borrower, this loan will likely be forgiven at the due date. Therefore, an
allowance for doubtful accounts of $370,000 has been recorded.
The City has a $764,500 note receivable from Champlain Housing Trust. The City loaned the
funds to fund the Champlain Housing Loan Funds and allow the organization to continue
providing Housing Rehabilitation and Counseling and Advocacy services. The source of the
money for the loan was from a Federal grant. Interest is at 0% and the note is due in 2042. If all
terms are met by the borrower, this loan will likely be forgiven at the due date. Therefore, an
allowance for doubtful accounts of $764,500 has been recorded.
The City has a $1,500,000 note receivable from HK Central Block Limited Partnership due from
the sale of land in the Downtown District known as Lot 5. The sale price was $2,500,000 and
the City received $500,000 at closing. The City received an additional $500,000 payment on this
note on June 16, 2009. The terms of the note require the remaining $1,500,000 to be repaid over
twenty (20) years beginning in 2020. Until then, there are only annual payments of interest at
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5%. Interest received in 2019 amounted to $93,750. The note is secured by a second mortgage
on the entire Barlow Square condominium. The City believes this loan is collectible.
D. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated
Land
Construction in Progress
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated

Decreases

Ending
Balance

‐
360,544
360,544

$ 531,926
‐
531,926

$ 1,709,520
539,056
2,248,576

6,625,318
3,692,548
33,618,889
43,936,755

45,803
265,069
204,536
515,408

3,850
72,525
76,375

6,667,271
3,885,092
33,823,425
44,375,788

2,961,163
2,025,746
16,293,004
21,279,913
22,656,842
$ 25,076,800

213,565
232,745
791,911
1,238,221
(722,813)
(362,269)

1,027
70,525
‐
71,552
4,823
$ 536,749

3,173,701
2,187,966
17,084,915
22,446,582
21,929,206
$ 24,177,782

$

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Buildings and Building Improvements
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Buildings and Building Improvements
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure
Totals
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net
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178,512
2,419,958

Increases

$

$
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Beginning
Balance
Business‐Type Activities
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated
Land
Construction in Progress
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated

$

647,573
382,655
1,030,228

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Parking Garage
Buildings, Distribution and Collection
System & Improvements
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Parking Garage
Buildings, Distribution and Collection
System & Improvements
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment
Totals
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Business‐Type Activities Capital Assets, Net

Increases

$

Decreases

‐
343,070
343,070

$

‐
42,355
42,355

Total Depreciation
Expense
Governmental
Activities

$

146,512
892,553
199,155

$ 1,238,221

$

647,573
683,370
1,330,943

15,284,213

‐

‐

15,284,213

18,468,069
1,866,204
35,618,486

630,046
7,274
637,320

‐
‐
‐

19,098,115
1,873,478
36,255,806

4,027,984

315,916

‐

4,343,900

9,278,018
1,057,304
14,363,306
22,656,842
$ 25,076,800

352,885
139,399
808,200
(170,880)
172,190

‐
‐
‐
‐
$ 42,355

9,630,903
1,196,703
15,171,506
21,084,300
$ 22,415,243

$

Depreciation was charged as follows:
Governmental Activities:
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation

Ending
Balance

Business‐Type Activities:
Water
Sewer
Parking

$ 126,299
327,296
354,676

Total Depreciation
Expense
Business‐Type
Activities

$ 808,201
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E. Interfund Balances and Activity
The composition of interfund balances at June 30, 2019 is as follows:
Interfund
Receivables
General Fund
TIF Downtown Fund
Community Development Loan Fund
City Capital Reserve Fund
Justice Center Fund
Asset Forfeitures Fund
JAG Fund
Community Center Fund
Sewer Fund
Water Fund
Parking Garage Fund
Total

$

‐
‐
400
564,734
12,846
54,519
‐
‐
234,623
47,595
1,327,703
$ 2,242,420

Interfund
Payables
$ 1,903,935
338,486
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
$ 2,242,421

Interfund transfers during the year ended June 30, 2019 were as follows:
From
General Fund
General Fund
TIF Downtown Fund
Community Center Fund
Parking Garage Fund

To
Capital Fund
Community Justice Center
General Fund
General Fund
TIF

Amount
$ 659,510
12,614
219,129
65,666
110,197

Purpose
Capital Plan and Assignment of Balances by Council
Local match for Justice Center Grant
To offset additional operating costs due to TIF development
To offset Community Center operating costs over rent revenues
Contribution toward debt owed per bond covenant

$ 1,067,117

F. Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources in the Governmental Activities consists of $99,712 from the
difference between the expected and actual experience, $127,123 from changes in assumptions,
$133,044 from the difference between the projected and actual investment earnings, $87,895
from changes in the City’s proportional share of contributions related to the City’s participation
in the Vermont Municipal Employee’s Retirement System (VMERS) and $166,198 of the
required employer pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement date, as further
described in Note V.A.1. Deferred outflows of resources in the Governmental Activities also
includes $709,753 of Bond Refunding Costs, which are being amortized over the 120 month life
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of the Downtown Project bonds. Total deferred outflows of resources in the Governmental
Activities is $1,323,725.
Deferred outflows of resources in the Business Activities consists of $12,079 from the difference
between the expected and actual experience, $15,400 from changes in assumptions, $16,117
from the difference between the projected and actual investment earnings, $10,649 from changes
in the City’s proportional share of contributions related to the City’s participation in the Vermont
Municipal Employee’s Retirement System (VMERS) and $20,134, of required employer pension
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date, as further described in Note V.A.1.
Total deferred outflows of resources in the Business Activities is $74,379.
Deferred outflows of resources in the Water Fund consists of $3,339 from the difference between
the expected and actual experience, $4,257 from changes in assumptions, $4,455 from the
difference between the projected and actual investment earnings, $2,944 from changes in the
City’s proportional share of contributions related to the City’s participation in the Vermont
Municipal Employee’s Retirement System (VMERS) and $5,566 of required employer pension
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date, as further described in Note V.A.1.
Total deferred outflows of resources in the Water Fund is $20,561.
Deferred outflows of resources in the Sewer Fund consists of $6,089 from the difference
between the expected and actual experience, $7,763 from changes in assumptions, $8,124 from
the difference between the projected and actual investment earnings, $5,367 from changes in the
City’s proportional share of contributions related to the City’s participation in the Vermont
Municipal Employee’s Retirement System (VMERS) and $10,148 of required employer pension
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date, as further described in Note V.A.1.
Total deferred outflows of resources in the Sewer Fund is $37,491.
Deferred outflows of resources in the Parking Fund consists of $2,651 from the difference
between the expected and actual experience, $3,381 from changes in assumptions, $3,538 from
the difference between the projected and actual investment earnings, $2,337 from changes in the
City’s proportional share of contributions related to the City’s participation in the Vermont
Municipal Employee’s Retirement System (VMERS) and $4,420 of required employer pension
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date, as further described in Note V.A.1.
Total deferred outflows of resources in the Parking Fund is $16,327.
G. Unearned Revenue and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows of resources in the Governmental Activities consists of $3,057 of prepaid
property taxes, $18,356 from the difference between the expected and actual experience and
$42,868 resulting from the differences between the employer contributions and the proportionate
share of total contributions related to the City’s participation in the Vermont Municipal
Employee’s Retirement System (VMERS), as further described in Note V.A.1. Total deferred
inflows of resources in the Governmental Activities is $64,281.
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Deferred inflows of resources in the Business Activities consists of $2,224 from the difference
between the expected and actual experience and $5,193 resulting from the differences between
the employer contributions and the proportionate share of total contributions related to the City’s
participation in the Vermont Municipal Employee’s Retirement System (VMERS), as further
described in Note V.A.1. Total deferred inflows of resources in the Business Activities is $7,417.
Deferred inflows of resources in the Water Fund consists of $615 from the difference between
the expected and actual experience and $1,435 resulting from the differences between the
employer contributions and the proportionate share of total contributions related to the City’s
participation in the Vermont Municipal Employee’s Retirement System (VMERS), as further
described in Note V.A.1. Total deferred inflows of resources in the Sewer Fund is $2,050.
Deferred inflows of resources in the Sewer Fund consists of $1,121 from the difference between
the expected and actual experience and $2,618 resulting from the differences between the
employer contributions and the proportionate share of total contributions related to the City’s
participation in the Vermont Municipal Employee’s Retirement System (VMERS), as further
described in Note V.A.1. Total deferred inflows of resources in the Sewer Fund is $3,739.
Deferred inflows of resources in the Parking Fund consists of $488 from the difference between
the expected and actual experience and $1,140 resulting from the differences between the
employer contributions and the proportionate share of total contributions related to the City’s
participation in the Vermont Municipal Employee’s Retirement System (VMERS), as further
described in Note V.A.1. Total deferred inflows of resources in the Parking Fund is $1,628.
Unearned revenue in the Governmental Activities and the Governmental Funds consists of
$3,998
of grant revenue received in advance and $2,562 of fees paid by customers for services to be
rendered during fiscal year 2020. The revenue will be recognized as expenses are incurred on the
grants and services are provided. Total unearned revenue in the Governmental Activities and the
Governmental Funds is $6,560.
Unearned revenue in the Business-Type Activities consists of $385,298 of parking fees received
in advance of which $108,375 will be recognized in fiscal year 2020 and $5027 in water service
fees paid in advance of which all is anticipated to be recognized in fiscal year 2020. The revenue
will be recognized as parking and other services are provided.
Unearned revenue in the Water Fund consists of $5,027 of service fees received in advance all of
which is anticipated to be recognized in fiscal year 2020. The revenue will be recognized as
services are provided.
Unearned revenue in the Parking Garage Fund consists of $385,298 of parking fees received in
advance of which $108,375 will be recognized in fiscal year 2020. The revenue will be
recognized as parking and other services are provided.
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Deferred inflows of resources in the General Fund consists of $3,057 of prepaid property taxes as
well as $37,717 of delinquent property taxes, penalties and interest on those taxes and $59,964 in
receivables that were not collected within sixty (60) days after year-end as these would not be
available to liquidate current liabilities. Total deferred inflows of resources in the General Fund
are $100,738.
Deferred inflows of resources in the TIF Downtown Fund includes $1,500,000 for a note
receivable that was not collected within sixty (60) days after year-end as it would not be
available to liquidate current liabilities. Total deferred inflows of resources in the TIF Downtown
Fund are $1,500,000.
Deferred inflows of resources in the Community Development Loan Fund consists of $466,488
in loans and notes receivable that were not collected within sixty (60) days after year-end as
these would not be available to liquidate current liabilities. Total deferred inflows of resources in
the Community Development Loan Fund are $466,488.
H. Long-term Liabilities
General Obligation Bonds – The City issues general obligation bonds to provide resources for
the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities and to refund prior issues. General
obligation bonds have been issued for both general governmental and proprietary activities.
Bonds are reported in governmental activities if the debt is expected to be repaid from general
governmental revenues and in business-type activities if the debt is expected to be repaid from
proprietary fund revenues. All of the City’s debt that will be repaid from the revenues of the Tax
Increment Financing District are reported in governmental activities even though Water, Sewer
and Parking Fund capital assets were financed with this debt and all net parking revenue is
collateral for the outstanding letter of credit securing the debt. The amount of the future net
parking revenue is not determinable.
General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City.
New bonds generally are issued as 10 to 20-year bonds.
No-Interest Revolving Loans - The State of Vermont offers a number of no-interest revolving
loan programs to utilize for predetermined purposes. The City has borrowed money from the
Vermont Special Environmental Revolving Fund for water and sewer infrastructure projects.
Other Notes Payable - The City has other notes payable to finance various capital projects and
purchases through local banks.
Capital Lease Obligations - The City enters into lease agreements as the lessee for the purpose of
financing the acquisition of major pieces of equipment. These lease agreements qualify as
capital lease obligations for accounting purposes (even though they may include clauses that
allow for cancellation of the lease in the event the City does not appropriate funds in future
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years) and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease
payments as of the inception of the leases. Leases are reported in governmental activities if the
debt is expected to be repaid from general governmental revenue and in the business-type
activities if the debt is expected to be repaid from proprietary fund revenue.
Compensated Absences - It is the policy of the City to permit employees to accumulate vacation
or CTO, comp-time and sick leave time. The value of vacation, CTO, and comp time will be
paid at the employee’s current rate of pay upon retirement, termination or death. Sick time has no
monetary value. The accrual for compensated absences, based on current rates, is recorded in the
government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements.
Other Post-Employment Benefits - The City offers retired employees single coverage health
insurance provided the employee has reached age 62 and their years of service plus their age
equals 100. The benefit ends at age 65. The estimated liability is based on two employee who
are likely to receive benefits in the near future
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Long-term liabilities outstanding as of June 30, 2019 were as follows.
Beginning
Balance

Deletions

Ending
Balance

‐

$ 1,687,210

$ 9,015,076

‐

‐

1,098,000

Additions

Governmental Activities:
Special Obligation Refunding Bonds ‐ Downtown Project Series
2014A, Payable to TD Bank, N.A., Monthly payments of
$163695 beginning July 1, 2014 inclusive of interest and
principal through 2024, 2.79% Interest; This Bond will be repaid
from the revenues of the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District

$ 10,702,286

$

Subordinate Special Obligation Tax Increment Financing Note,
Series 2004B, Payable to Winooski Community Development
Trust (the Mayor and City Council are Trustees of the Trust),
Downtown Land Purchase, Interest at 5.0% beginning July 1,
2005, payable semi‐annually. However, the City has the option
not to pay the interest payments, and has executed this option,
but interest shall accrue without additional interest. Principal
and interest payments of $192,441 due semi‐annually
beginning July 1, 2014 through July 21, 2024. Nonpayment of
principal does not result in default or acceleration of the loan
but triggers interest rates of 6% beginning July 1, 2014 and 7%
beginning January 1,2016 if no payment are made. Unpaid
accrued interest is estimated to be $483,300 at June 30, 2019.
The payment of this Note is subordinate to the payment in full
of the Special Obligation Refunding Bonds and the Pecor Note.
This Note will be repaid from the revenues of the Tax
Increment Financing District. During the fiscal year the City paid
$150,000 of accrued interest.

1,098,000
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Beginning
Balance

Additions

Deletions

Ending
Balance

Subordinate Special Obligation Tax Increment Financing Note,
Series 2004A, Payable to Raymond Pecor, III and Stacey Pecor,
Downtown Land Purchase, Interest at 5.0% beginning July 1,
2005, payable semi‐annually, City has the option not to pay the
interest payments, and has executed this option, but interest
shall accrue without additional interest. Principal and interest
payments of $201,647 due semi‐annually beginning July 1,
2014 through July 21, 2024. Non‐payment of principal does not
result in default or acceleration of the loan but triggers interest
rates of 6% beginning July 1, 2014. After this date payments
have been made as scheduled. Unpaid accrued interest is
$10,261 at June 30, 2019. This Note will be repaid from the
revenues of the Tax Increment Financing District.

3,000,000

‐

480,418

2,519,582

Bond Payable ‐ Vermont Municipal Bond Bank, Street
Reconstruction, $74,358. Due annually on November 15
through 2031, interest ranging from 0.804% to 4.664%. Paid
semi‐annually on May 15 and November 15

991,246

‐

70,817

920,429

Bond Payable ‐ Vermont Municipal Bond Bank, Community
Center, $110,000. Due annually on November 15 through
2029, interest ranging from 1.31% to 5.23%. Paid semi‐annually
on May 15 and November 15

1,320,000

‐

110,000

1,210,000

Lease Payable ‐ Bank Capital Services LLC, Loader & Backhoe.
Interest 3.5%, $18,736 inclusive of interest due annually
December 1 through 2021

35,595

‐

17,492

18,103

Lease Payable ‐ TD Equipment Financing, Dump Truck w/ Plow
Attachment. Interest 2.81%, $30,526 inclusive of interest due
annually January 30 through 2020

58,573

‐

28,881

29,692
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Beginning
Balance

Additions

Ending
Balance

Deletions

Lease Payable ‐ Bank Capital Services LLC, Maclean MV2
Sidewalk Snowplow. Interest 3.45%, $24,018.96 due annually
September 1 through 2021

67,352

‐

21,693

45,659

Lease Payable ‐ Ford Motor Credit, 2017 Ford Interceptor.
Interest 4.95%, $7,786 due annually August 1 through 2020

21,222

‐

6,735

14,487

Lease Payable ‐ Leasing 2, 2014 Sutphen Pumper. Interest
4.231%, $27,903 due annually July 15 through 2029

241,425

‐

17,688

223,737

be rolled into Bond for Pool Reconstruction.

‐

205,000

‐

205,000

Lease Payable ‐ Ford Motor Credit, 2018 Ford Interceptor Fire
Command. Interest 7.5%, $8,115 inclusive of interest due
annually July 24 through 2023

‐

35,075

‐

35,075

Lease Payable ‐ Ford Motor Credit, 2018 Ford Interceptor.
Interest 7.2%, $8,887.65 inclusive of interest due annually
October 5 through 2020

‐

29,750

13,725

16,025

Lease Payable ‐ Municipal Leasing Consultants, Livescan
Fingerprinting System. Interest 5.99%, $4,495 inclusive of
interest due annually July 15 through 2023

‐

19,825

4,247

15,578

$ 17,535,699

$ 289,650

$ 2,458,905

$ 15,366,444

Bond Anticipation Note ‐ TD Bank, Myers Pool Reconstruction.
Interest 2.95% per annum; payable on September 13, 2019; to

Debt

The Special Obligation Refunding Bonds include certain financial and other covenants.
The City also has another long-term liability to Vermont Works for Women (VWFW) which is a
tenant in the City’s Community Center. The City has agreed to pay for VWFW’s cost incurred
to fit up its space by reducing VWFW’s lease payments by 63.82%. This equated to $10,470 in
2019. If VWFW were to move out of the space, the remaining balance of $464,969.50, less a
penalty rate of 10% results in $418,472.55, payable to VWFW. The penalty rate decreased
during fiscal year 2019 resulting in an increase in the obligation being carried for this liability.
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Beginning
Balance

Additions

Ending
Balance

Deletions

Business‐Type Activities:
Sewer Fund:
Municipal Bond Bank, Garage Construction, $12,500. Due
annually on November 15 through 2038. Interest ranging from
1.7% to 4.13%. Paid semi‐annually on May 15 and November
15

‐

$ 250,000

Bond Payable ‐ State of Vermont Special Environmental
Revolving Loan Fund, Main Street Reconstruction, $11,328.
Due annually starting in April 2023. 0% interest, partial
principal forgiveness

‐

190,383

‐

190,383

Bond Payable ‐ State of Vermont Special Environmental
Revolving Loan Fund, Pollution Aeration Improvements,
$9,540. Due annually starting in October 2024. 0% interest,
partial principal forgiveness

11,520

147,790

‐

159,310

Bond Payable ‐ State of Vermont Special Environmental
Revolving Loan Fund, 0% interest, $60,000 due annually on
January 1 through 2020

120,000

‐

60,000

60,000

Bond Payable ‐ Vermont Municipal Bond Bank, Street
Reconstruction, $15,791. Due annually on November 15
through 2031. Interest ranging from 0.804% to 4.664%. Paid
semi‐annually on May 15 and November 15

210,595

‐

15,040

195,556

Lease Payable ‐ Bank Capital Services LLC, Loader & Backhoe.
Interest 3.5%, $24,794.04 due annually December 1 through
2021

47,102

‐

23,146

23,956

389,217

588,173

98,186

879,204

Total Sewer Fund
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Beginning
Balance

Additions

Ending
Balance

Deletions

Business‐Type Activities:
Water Fund:
Bond Payable ‐ State of Vermont Special Environmental
Revolving Loan Fund, 0% interest, $21,327 due annually
starting in April 2023

$

‐

$ 95,192

$

‐

$

95,192

Bond Payable ‐ Vermont Municipal Bond Bank, Street
Reconstruction, $14,851. Due annually on November 15
through 2031. Interest ranging from 0.804% to 4.664%. Paid
semi‐annually on May 15 and November 15

198,159

‐

14,143

184,016

Lease Payable ‐ Bank Capital Services LLC, Loader & Backhoe.
Interest 3.5%, $24,794.04 due annually December 1 through
2021

47,102

‐

23,146

23,956

4.44% paid semi‐annually on December 1 and June 1

66,360

‐

9,480

56,880

Other Liability ‐ Champlain Water District , Water Allocation,
$6,220.26 due annually on August 1 through 2036. Interest at
1% and admin fee at 2%

89,098

‐

3,547

85,551

400,719

95,192

50,317

445,594

789,936

$ 683,365

$ 148,503

$ 1,324,798

Other Liability ‐ Champlain Water District , Water Allocation,
$9,480 due annually on December 1 through 2024. Interest at

Total Water Fund
Total Business‐Type Activities

$
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Changes in all long-term liabilities during the year were as follows:

Governmental Activities
Bonds Payable
Notes Payable
Capital Leases Payable
Other Long‐Term Liability ‐ VW FW
Compensated Absences
Other Post Employment Benefit

Beginning
Balance

Additions

$ 13,013,532
4,098,000
424,167
356,355
181,346
31,215

$ 205,000
‐
84,650
72,588
7,532
‐

18,104,615

Total Governmental Activities
Long‐Term Liabilities
Business‐Type Activities
Bonds Payable
Capital Leases Payable
Due to Champlain Water District
Compensated Absences
Total Business‐Type Activities
Long‐Term Liabilities

$

Ending
Balance

Due Within
One Year

1,868,027
480,418
110,460
10,470
‐
6,043

$ 11,350,505
3,617,582
398,357
418,473
188,878
25,172

$ 2,120,706
‐
97,183
10,373
‐
‐

369,770

2,475,418

15,998,967

2,228,262

540,274
94,204
155,458
41,032

683,365
‐
‐
9,454

89,183
46,292
13,027
‐

1,134,456
47,912
142,431
50,486

149,108
46,292
13,134
‐

830,968

$ 692,819

148,503

$ 1,375,284

$ 208,534

Reductions
$

$

Compensated Absences are paid by the applicable fund where the employee is charged.
The cost of assets financed by capital leases is $986,627 for Governmental Activities and
$195,481 for Business-type activities. Amortization of the leases is included in depreciation
expense. Accumulated depreciation for Governmental activities is $146,411 and Business-type
activities is $32,538.
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Maturities of notes, bonds and capital leases payable based on the City’s intentions and contracts
are as follows:
Governmetnal Activities
Year Ending
June 30

Principal

Capital
Leases

Interest

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025‐2029
2030‐2034
2035‐2039
Less Imputed
Interest

$ 2,120,706
1,964,734
2,015,146
2,066,984
5,574,173
903,893
322,451
‐

$

321,637
262,167
204,783
145,688
84,869
180,005
15,837
‐

‐

‐

Total

$ 14,968,088

$ 1,214,986

$ 98,070
81,204
40,512
40,512
40,512
139,514
27,903
‐
(69,872)
$ 398,356

Business‐Type Activities
Capital
Principal
Interest
Leases
$ 114,817
54,926
55,039
87,811
97,470
336,663
147,601
17,595

$ 25,220
23,590
21,841
19,964
18,251
66,812
25,158
6,496

‐

‐

$ 911,923

$ 207,332

$ 49,588
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
(1,676)
$ 47,912

I. Net Position/Fund Balances
GASB Statement No. 34, as amended by GASB Statement No. 54, requires fund balances
reported on the governmental fund balance sheet to be classified using a hierarchy based
primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to honor constraints on the specific
purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent.
Governmental fund balances are to be classified as: nonspendable (not in spendable form or
legally required to remain intact); restricted (constraints on the use of resources are either
externally imposed by creditors, grantors or donors, or imposed by law through enabling
legislation); committed (constraints on the use of resources are imposed by formal action of the
voters); assigned (reflecting the City Council’s intended use of the resources); and unassigned.
Special Revenue Funds are created only to report a revenue source (or sources) that is restricted
or committed to a specified purpose, and that the revenue source should constitute a substantial
portion of the resources reported in that fund. Special Revenue Funds cannot be used to
accumulate funds that are not restricted or committed. These amounts will have to be reflected
in the General Fund.
Amounts constrained to stabilization will be reported as restricted or committed fund balance in
the General Fund if they meet the other criteria for those classifications. However, stabilization
is regarded as a specified purpose only if the circumstances or conditions that signal the need for
stabilization (a) are identified in sufficient detail and (b) are not expected to occur routinely.
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The City does not have any stabilization arrangements.
Some governments create stabilization-like arrangements by establishing formal minimum fund
balance policies. The City does not have a minimum fund balance policy; however, there is in
place a governmental fund balance policy that sets a target operating reserve of 30 days cash on
hand.
When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted amounts
are available, it is the City’s policy to first consider restricted amounts to have been spent,
followed by committed, assigned, and finally unassigned amounts.
The purpose for each major Special Revenue Fund, including which specific revenues and other
resources are authorized to be reported in each, are described in the following section.
The restricted net position of the City as of June 30, 2019 consisted of the following:
Governmental Activities:
Restricted for Downtown Project and Debt Service
By Bond Agreement and TIF Legislation
Restricted for Community Development by Grant
Agreements and Donations
Restricted for Public Safety by Grant Agreements
and Regulation
Total Governmental Activities

$

2,128,819
1,043,228
70,107

$

3,242,154

$

123,648

Nonspendable Prepaid Expenses
Nonspendable Inventory

$

228,719
829

Total Major Funds

$

229,548

Business-Type Activities:
Restricted for Sewer Expansion by Ordinance
The fund balances of the following funds are nonspendable as follows:
Major Funds
General Fund:
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Non-Major Funds
Justice Center Fund
Nonspendable Prepaid Expenses

$

52

Total Non-Major Funds

$

52

Total Nonspendable Fund Balances

$

229,600

The fund balances in the following funds are restricted as follows:
Major Funds
General Fund:
Restricted for Parks Planning work purposes by
Grant Agreement

$36,847

TIF Downtown:
Downtown Project and Debt Service by
Bond Agreement and TIF Legislation

628,819

Community Development Fund:
Restricted for Community Development by
Grant Agreements

576,740

Total Major Funds

$1,242,407

Non-Major Funds:
Asset Forfeitures Fund:
Restricted for Public Safety by Regulation
(Source of Revenue is Asset Seizures)
Justice Center Fund:
Restricted for Public Safety by Donations and Grant Agreements
(Source of Revenue is Donations and Grant Payments)
Total Non-Major funds

$ 57,519
12,536
$ 70,055

Total Restricted Fund Balances

$ 1,312,462
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The fund balances in the following funds are assigned as follows:
Major Funds
General Fund:
Assigned for Community Development
Assigned for Reappraisal
Assigned for Public Art
Assigned for Lister Education
Assigned for Records Restoration
Assigned for Fire/Hazmat
Assigned for Community Service Programs
Assigned for Other Post-Employment Benefits
Total General Fund

$205,236
187,200
5,501
2,894
81,430
89,021
93,592
25,173
690,047

City Capital Reserve Fund:
Assigned for Capital Projects

427,801

Total Assigned Fund Balances

$1,117,848

V. OTHER INFORMATION
A. PENSION PLAN
Defined Benefit Plans
The Vermont Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (VMERS)
Plan Description
The Vermont Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (VMERS) is a cost-sharing, multipleemployer defined benefit pension plan that is administered by the State Treasurer and its Board
of Trustees. It is designed for municipal and school district employees that work on a regular
basis and also includes employees of museums and libraries if at least half of that institution’s
operating expenses are met by municipal funds. An employee of any employer that becomes
affiliated with the system may join at that time or at any time thereafter. Any employee hired
subsequent to the effective participation date of their employer who meets the minimum hourly
requirements is required to join the system. During the year ended June 30, 2018, the retirement
system consisted of 402 participating employers.
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The plan was established effective July 1, 1975, and is governed by Title 24, V.S.A. Chapter
125.
The general administration and responsibility for formulating administrative policy and
procedures of the retirement system for its members and their beneficiaries is vested in the Board
of Trustees consisting of five members. They are the State Treasurer, two employee
representatives elected by the membership of the system, and two employer representatives-one
elected by the governing bodies of participating employers of the system, and one selected by the
Governor from a list of four nominees. The list of four nominees is jointly submitted by the
Vermont League of Cities and Towns and the Vermont School Boards Association.
All assets are held in a single trust and are available to pay retirement benefits to all members.
Benefits available to each group are based on average final compensation (AFC) and years of
creditable service.
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred
Inflows of Resources
As of June 30, 2018, the measurement date selected by the State of Vermont, VMERS was
funded at 82.60% and had a plan fiduciary net position of $667,848,905 and a total pension
liability of $808,524,797 resulting in a net position liability of $140,675,892. As of June 30,
20178the City’s proportionate share was .91490% resulting in liability of $1,287,028. The net
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The
City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term
share of contribution to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating entities, actuarially determined. As of June 30, 2018, the City’s proportion of
.91490% was an increase of .15675% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017.
For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of $351,246.
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As of June 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources from the following sources:
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Difference between expected and
actual experience

$

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

111,791

$ 20,580

Difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan
investments

149,161

‐

Changes in assumptions

142,523

‐

Differences between employer
contributions and proportionate share
of total contributions

98,544

48,061

City's required employer contribution
made subsequent to measurement
date

186,332

‐

688,351

$ 68,641

$

The deferred outflows of resources resulting from the City’s required employer contributions
made subsequent to the measurement date in the amount of $186,332 will be recognized as a
reduction of net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:
Year Ending
June 30
2019
2020
2021
2022

$

$
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100,867
34,995
55,039
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Summary of System Provisions
Membership – Full time employees of participating municipalities.
coverage under Groups B, C and D provisions.

The City has elected

Creditable Service – Service as a member plus purchased service.
Average Final Compensation (AFC) – Groups B and C – Average annual compensation during
highest three (3) consecutive years. Group D – Average annual compensation during highest
two (2) consecutive years.
Service Retirement Allowance:
Eligibility – Group B – The earlier of age 62 with five (5) years of service or age 55 with
thirty (30) years of service. Groups C and D – Age 55 with five (5) years of service.
Amount – Group B – 1.7% of AFC times service as a Group B member plus percentage
earned as a Group A member times AFC. Group C – 2.5% of AFC times service as a
Group C member plus percentage earned as a Group A or B member times AFC. Group
D – 2.5% of AFC times service as a Group D member plus percentage earned as a Group
A, B or C member times AFC.
Maximum benefit is 60% of AFC for Group B and 50% of AFC for Groups C and D.
The previous amounts include the portion of the allowance provided by member
contributions.
Early Retirement Allowance:
Eligibility – Age 55 with five (5) years of service for Group B. Age 50 with twenty (20)
years of service for Group D.
Amount – Normal allowance based on service and AFC at early retirement, reduced by
6% for each year commencement precedes normal retirement age for Group B members
and payable without reduction to Group D members.
Vested Retirement Allowance:
Eligibility – Five (5) years of service.
Amount – Allowance beginning at normal retirement age based on AFC and service at
termination. The AFC is to be adjusted annually by one-half of the percentage change in
the Consumer Price Index, subject to the limits on “Post-Retirement Adjustments”.
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Disability Retirement Allowance:
Eligibility – Five (5) years of service and disability as determined by Retirement Board.
Amount – Immediate allowance based on AFC and service to date of disability;
children’s benefit of 10% of AFC payable to up to three minor children (or children up to
age 23 if enrolled in full-time studies) of a disabled Group D member.
Death Benefit:
Eligibility – Death after five (5) years of service.
Amount – For Groups B and C, reduced early retirement allowance under 100% survivor
option commencing immediately or, if greater, survivor(s) benefit under disability
annuity computed as of date of death. For Group D, 70% of the unreduced accrued
benefit plus children’s benefit.
Optional Benefit and Death after Retirement – For Groups B and C, lifetime allowance or
actuarially equivalent 50% or 100% joint and survivor allowance with refund of contribution
guarantee. For Group D, lifetime allowance or 70% contingent annuitant option with no
reduction.
Refund of Contribution – Upon termination, if the member so elects or if no other benefit is
payable, the member’s accumulated contributions are refunded.
Post-Retirement Adjustments – Allowance in payment for at least one year increased on each
January 1 by one-half of the percentage increase in Consumer Price Index but not more than 3%
for Groups B, C and D.
Retirement Stipend – $25 per month payable at the option of the Board of Trustees.

Member Contributions

Group
B
C
D

Employer Contributions

B
C
D
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Effective
7/1/18
5.000%
10.125%
11.475%

For Fiscal Year
Ended 6/30/18
4.875%
10.000%
11.350%

5.625%
7.375%
9.975%

5.500%
7.250%
9.850%
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Significant Actuarial Assumptions and Methods
Investment Rate of Return: 7.50%, net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation,
the same as in the prior year.
Salary increases: 5% per year.
Mortality –
Death in Active Service: Groups B and C – 98% of RP-2006 blended 60% Blue Collar
Employee, 40% Healthy Employee with generational improvement. Group D – RP-2006
Blue Collar Annuitant Table with generation improvement.
Healthy Post-Retirement: Groups B and C – 98% of RP-2014 blended 60% Blue Collar
Annuitant, 40% Healthy Annuitant with generational improvement. Group D – 100% of
RP-2014 Health Annuitant with generational improvement.
Disabled Post-Retirement: Groups B, C and D – RP-2006 Disabled Mortality Table with
generational improvement.
Spouse’s Age: Females three years younger than males.
Cost-of-Living Adjustments: Assumed to occur on January 1 following one year of retirement at
the rate of 1.3% per annum for Groups B, C and D members, the same as in the prior year
(beginning at normal retirement eligibility age for members who elect reduced early retirement,
at age 62 for members of Groups B and D who receive a disability retirement benefit, and at age
55 for members of Group C who receive a disability retirement benefit). The January 1, 2019
COLA is assumed to be 1.3% for all groups.
Actuarial Cost Method: Entry age actuarial cost method. Entry age is the age at date of
employment or, if date is unknown, current age minus years of service. Normal cost and actuarial
accrued liability are calculated on an individual basis and are allocated by salary, with normal
cost determined using the plan of benefits applicable to each participant.
Actuarial Value of Assets: A smoothing method is used, under which the value of assets for
actuarial purposes equals market value less a five-year phase-in of the differences between actual
and assumed investment return. The value of assets for actuarial purposes may not differ from
market value of assets by more than 20%.
Inflation: 2.50%, the same as the prior year.
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Long-term Expected Rate of Return:
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using
a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the longterm expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2018 are summarized in the following table:
Asset Class
US Equity
Non-US Equity
Global Equity
Fixed Income
Real Estate
Private Markets
Hedge Funds

Target Allocation

Long-term Expected
Real Rate of Return

18%
16%
9%
26%
8%
15%
8%

6.10%
7.45%
6.74%
2.25%
5.11%
7.60%
3.86%

Discount Rate:
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%, the percentage used in
the prior year. In accordance with paragraph 29 of GASB 68, professional judgement was
applied to determine that the System’s projected fiduciary net position exceeds projected benefit
payments for current active and inactive members for all years. The analysis was based on the
expectation that employers will continue to contribute at the rates set by the Board, which exceed
the actuarially determined contribution, which is comprised on an employer normal cost payment
and a payment to reduce the unfunded liability to zero by June 30, 2038. Therefore, the longterm expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate: The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
calculated using the discount rate of 7.50%, as well as what the proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percent lower
(6.50%) or one percent higher (8.50%) than the current rate.
1% Decrease (6.50%)
$2,179,934

Discount Rate (7.50%)
$1,287,028
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1% Increase (8.50%)
$560,847
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Additional Information
Additional information regarding the State of Vermont Municipal Employees’ Retirement
System, including the details of Fiduciary Net Position, is available upon request from the State
of Vermont.
2. Vermont Municipal Employees Retirement System – Deferred Contribution Plan
The City also offers participation in the VMERS defined contribution (DC) Plan as an option for
police dispatchers. The premise of Plan DC is to allow employees to have a choice in investing
their retirement assets. Each employee will receive the value of their account upon retirement.
Employees contribute 5% of earnings to the plan and the City contributes 5.125%. Employees
may only enroll in a single VMERS type plan. No employees elected VMERS DC coverage
during the 2019 fiscal year.
3. Other Defined Contribution Plan
The City also maintains a Section 401(a) defined contribution pension plan for all other
employees not included in VMERS. Eligible employees must be twenty-one (21) years of age
and work a minimum of 1,000 hours per year. This Plan provides retirement and survivor
benefits. Under the plan specifications, a member may retire after reaching the age of 65 with no
provision for early retirement. Benefits are not vested until an employee has five (5) years of
service at which time they become 100% vested. Upon retirement, members are entitled to a
lump sum distribution only. The City contributes 5% for all participating employees of gross
salary less amounts deferred under a Section 125 cafeteria plan. The City will match
contributions to the plan up to 6%. Per an employee contract the City contributions on the wages
for the City Manager are 9%. The City’s covered payroll for this retirement plan was
$1,449,150. Pension expense for this plan for the years ended June 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017 was
$82,054, $83,149, and $77,287respectively.
The City also maintains a Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan for its employees with a plan
year of January 1 through December 31. The 457 Plan covers substantially all employees. The
Plan is administered by Pension Works, Inc. with investments held at John Hancock. The Plans
permit employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Deferred compensation is
not available to employees until termination, retirement, or death. The City has no liability for
losses under the plans, but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary
prudent investor.
The City does not report these assets on their financial statements as they are held in trust for the
benefit of the employees.
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B. Property Taxes
Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of April 1. Taxes are levied on July 1
and are payable in four (4) installments due August 15, November 15, February 15, and May 15.
The City bills and collects its own property taxes as well as education taxes for the State of
Vermont. City property tax revenue is recognized when levied to the extent it is collected within
sixty (60) days after year-end.
The tax rate for fiscal year 2019 is as follows:
Residential

Non-

Residential
Education
Local Agreement Rate
City
Total

$1.4777
.0014
1.0689

$1.7281
.0014
1.0689

$2.5480

$2.7984

C. Risk Management
The City of Winooski is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City
of Winooski maintains insurance coverage through the Vermont League of Cities and Towns
Property and Casualty Intermunicipal Fund, Inc., covering each of those risks of loss.
Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to
the City of Winooski. Settled claims have not exceeded this coverage in any of the past three
fiscal years. The City must remain a member for a minimum of one year and may withdraw
from the Fund after that time by giving sixty days’ notice. Fund underwriting and rate setting
policies have been established after consultation with actuaries. Fund members are subject to a
supplemental assessment in the event of deficiencies. If the assets of the Fund were to be
exhausted, members would be responsible for the Fund’s liabilities.
Effective January 1, 2014 the City of Winooski, as a small group per the State of Vermont (50
and under full time employees), was mandated to buy insurance for health benefits through
Vermont Health Connect. The City makes all Blue Cross Blue Shield Plans available through
VHC available to qualified employees:
The City contributes up to 90% of the premium for the Silver CDHP plan to each employee
regardless of plan chosen. The City also provides first dollar coverage through a Health
Reimbursement Account (HRA) equal to $4,500 for single plans and $9,000 for all other plans.
The City has exposure to the extent of funded deductibles.
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City Contribution toward a BCBS Plan

City Funding toward
HRA

Single

$527.22

$4,500

Two Person

$1,054.44

$9,000

Employee & Children

$1,017.53

$9,000

Family

$1,481.49

$9,000

The City of Winooski is also a member of the Vermont League of Cities and Towns
Employment Resources and Benefits Trust. The Trust is a nonprofit corporation formed to
provide unemployment coverage and other employee benefits for Vermont municipalities and is
owned by the participating members. The agreement does not permit the Trust to make
additional assessments to its members. The City has only elected unemployment coverage with
the trust.
D. Operating Leases
The City has entered into operating leases for copiers, computer equipment, software licensing, a
postage machine, and electric vehicles. Lease expense for the fiscal year 2019 was $35,603.
Future minimum lease payments are as follows:
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

$33,229
24,766
7,608
7,608
4,639
835

Total

$ 78,685

E. Parking Garage Leases
The City leases spaces in its parking garage on a long-term basis to five commercial tenants. A
contract with Spinner Place Student Housing was executed during fiscal year 2019. Future
minimum rentals under these leases over the next five years are as follows:
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

$

Total

$ 1,677,230
62

485,045
314,065
320,586
275,841
281,693
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Revenue recognized under these leases for 2019 is $601,964 which includes revenue for spaces
leased at tenants’ option in excess of the minimum and lease payments deferred from prior years.
One of the tenants pre-paid a portion of its lease commitment in 2011. This prepayment was
deferred and is being amortized into revenue annually through June 30, 2024. The revenue
recognized for this year is $69,231 and the unamortized, unearned revenue at June 30, 2019 is
$346,154. In addition to this, other tenants pre-paid a portion of their 2019 leases before year
end in the amount of $39,144. Total unearned revenue at June 30, 2019 was $385,298.
F. Concentration of Expenses
The City purchased all of its water from Champlain Water District (CWD) for the year ended
June 30, 2019. The City purchased $408,061 of water from CWD.
The City has all of the dewatering services for biosolid waste from the Wastewater Treatment
Plant provided by the Burlington Department of Public Works. The City paid $141,644 for these
services in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.
G. TIF District
The City Council approved the establishment of a Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District on
November 2, 2000 which was later approved by the Vermont Legislature in 2000. The TIF
District allowed the City to undertake and pay for infrastructure improvements and community
development in its downtown. In 2004, Winooski voters approved $25.9 million in revenue
bonds to finance improvements in the District. As of April 1, 2004, the taxable value of
properties in the District was frozen at $24,822,940. Per TIF legislation adopted in May 2016
this base value was reconciled with the Vermont Economic Progress Council and Vermont State
Property Valuation and Review during and increased to $25,065,900 effective with the 2018
fiscal year grand list. With a TIF District, the value of properties within the District are frozen at
the time the District is created. All property taxes generated by the original base value continue
to go to the municipal General Fund and the State Education Fund. For twenty (20) years, all of
the municipal and education property taxes generated by any “new” development will finance
the TIF District infrastructure debt with the exception of 2% of the education property taxes
going to the State Education Fund. As part of the downtown development, the City constructed
a parking garage and private developers built commercial and residential properties. Revenues
from the parking garage and from agreements with the developers are also pledged towards
repayment of the debt.
H. Related Party Transactions
City Councilor Michael Myers and the owner of the City’s trash removal vendor, Myer’s
Containers, are related. The trash removal contract was entered into prior to Councilor Myers
being elected. Myers Container was paid $16,692 during the year ended June 30, 2019.
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H. Commitments and Contingencies
Grants and contracts require the fulfillment of certain conditions set forth in the instrument of the
grant or contract including a true up by the grantor. Failure to fulfill the conditions or the results
of the true up could result in the return of funds to the grantors. Although that is a possibility,
management deems the contingency remote, since by accepting the awards and their terms; it has
accommodated the objectives of the City to the provisions of the grant.
The City is a participating member in the Chittenden Solid Waste District (CSWD), Champlain
Water District (CWD), and the Green Mountain Transit (GMT), formerly known as the
Chittenden County Transportation Association (CCTA). The City could be subject to a portion,
or all, of these entities’ debt if these entities experience financial problems.
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Required Supplementary Information
Required supplementary information includes financial information and
disclosures that are required by the Government Accounting Standards Board but are
not considered a part of the basic financial statements. Such information includes:
●

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual General Fund

●

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

●

Schedule of Contributions
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SCHEDULE 1
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Budget
Revenue:
Taxes
Charges for Services
Investment Income
Intergovernmental Income
Fees, Fines and Forfeits
Licenses and Permits
Other
O'Brien Community Center

$

Total Revenue
Expenditures:
Mayor & City Council
City Manager's Department
Legal Department
Administrative Services
Clerk's Office (formerly Records Department)
Zoning
Fire Department/Code Enforcement
Police Department
Engineering Services
Public Works Department
Grounds & Facilities Department
O'Brien Community Center
Community Services
Pool Operation
Senior Citizens Center
Youth Programs
Library Department
Regional Programs
Capital Program
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures

$

Actual

5,464,729
94,000
7,750
509,356
165,100
18,500
104,400
334,153

$

5,468,414
137,972
23,907
488,051
149,204
17,673
190,610
296,260

$

3,685
43,972
16,157
(21,306)
(15,896)
(827)
86,210
(37,893)

6,697,989

6,772,090

74,101

63,042
202,311
53,000
642,522
134,076
57,772
372,648
2,469,800
47,604
597,646
532,626
314,153
119,897
0
51,776
104,555
213,859
239,885
480,816

74,984
224,726
51,727
653,868
126,997
54,365
384,569
2,539,332
56,419
606,394
476,468
311,293
116,631
0
36,014
117,133
203,683
290,002
659,510

(11,942)
(22,414)
1,273
(11,346)
7,079
3,407
(11,921)
(69,532)
(8,815)
(8,748)
56,158
2,860
3,267
0
15,762
(12,578)
10,177
(50,117)
(178,694)

6,697,989

6,984,115

(286,126)

-

(212,025)

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis:
Expenditures of other funds combined with the General Fund
Revenues of other funds combined with the General Fund
Transfers In - Intrafund
Transfers Out - Intrafund
Excess of Revenue and Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses - Exhibit D

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

$

(212,025)

(589,256)
626,540
20,484
(20,484)

$

(174,741)

The reconciling items are due to combining five (5) funds with the General Fund in order to comply with GASB Statement No. 54.

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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SCHEDULE 2
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS*
2019
Total Plan Net Pension Liability

$

City's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability

140,675,892

2018
$

0.91490%

121,155,552

2017
$

0.75815%

128,696,167

2016
$

0.84733%

77,095,810

2015
$

.97345%

9,126,613
.94419%

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

$

1,287,028

$

918,535

$

1,090,462

$

750,487

$

86,173

City's Covered Employee Payroll

$

2,205,765

$

1,857,247

$

1,317,914

$

1,403,915

$

1,541,131

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as a
Percentage of City's Covered Employee Payroll
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
Total Pension Liability

58.348%

49.457%

82.742%

53.457%

5.592%

82.60%
as of June 30, 2018

83.64%
as of June 30, 2017

80.95%
as of June 30, 2016

87.42%
as of June 30, 2015

98.32%
as of June 30, 2014

Notes to Schedule
Valuation Dates: June 30, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014.
Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore, only five years are shown.
Benefit Changes: None.
Change in Assumptions: The actuarial assumptions regarding the incidence of
maturity, terminations, retirements and disabilities were changed in accordance
with the findings of an experience study covering the five-year period ending June 30, 2014.

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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SCHEDULE 3
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS*
2019
Contractually Required Contribution (Actuarially Determined)

$

Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contributions
Contribution Excess/(Deficiency)

2018

186,332

$

(186,332)
$

City's Covered Employee Payroll
Contributions as a Percentage of City's Covered Employee Payroll

-

160,249

2017
$

(160,249)
$

-

123,812

2016
$

(123,812)
$

-

128,779

2015
$

(128,779)
$

-

135,187
(135,187)

$

-

2,205,765

1,857,247

1,317,914

1,403,915

1,541,131

8.447%

8.628%

9.395%

9.173%

8.772%

Notes to Schedule
Valuation Dates: June 30, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014
Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore, only five years are shown.

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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Other Supplementary Information

Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules
not required by the Government Accounting Standards Board, nor a part of the basic
financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.
●

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

●

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

●

Combining Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds - Parking

●

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net
Position - Proprietary Funds - Parking
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Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are established to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources (other than fiduciary trusts or for major capital projects) that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.
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SCHEDULE A
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019
Special Revenue Funds

Community
Center
Fund

Justice
Center
Fund

Asset
Forfeitures
Fund

JAG
Fund

Total

ASSETS
Cash
Receivables
Due From Other Funds
Prepaid Expenses
TOTAL ASSETS

$

-

$

180
12,846
52

$

3,000
54,519
-

$

-

$

3,180
67,365
52

$

-

$

13,078

$

57,519

$

-

$

70,597

$

-

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll
Unearned Revenue
Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities

$

490
-

$

-

$

-

$

490
-

-

490

-

-

490

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

52
12,536
-

0
57,519
-

-

52
70,055
-

-

12,588

57,519

-

70,107

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Receivables
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances/
(Deficits)
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES

$

-

$

13,078

$

57,519

$

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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-

$

70,597

SCHEDULE B
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES - NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
Special Revenue Funds
Community
Center
Fund
Revenue:
Intergovernmental
Donations
Rent & Lease Income
Other

$

Total Revenue

-

Justice
Center
Fund
$

Asset
Forfeitures
Fund

130,000
540

$

37,020
-

JAG
Fund
$

Total

6,077
440

$

173,097
980

-

130,540

37,020

6,517

174,077

-

131,732

15,145

6,077

152,954

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

131,732

15,145

6,077

152,954

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenue
Over Expenditures

-

(1,192)

21,875

440

21,123

Other Financing Sources/(Uses):
Transfers In
Transfers Out

(65,666)

12,614
-

-

-

12,614
(65,666)

(65,666)

12,614

-

-

(53,052)

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenue
and Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures and
and Other Financing/(Uses)

(65,666)

11,422

21,875

440

(31,929)

Fund Balances/(Deficit) July 1, 2018

65,666

1,166

35,644

(440)

102,036

Expenditures:
Public Safety
Public Buildings and
Facilities
Capital Outlay:
Public Safety
Public Buildings and Facilities
Debt Service:
Bond and Note Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures

Total Other Financing
Sources/(Uses)

Fund Balances/(Deficit) June 30, 2019

$

0

$

12,588

$

57,519

$

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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-

$

70,107

Proprietary Funds
Proprietary Funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a
fee is charged to external users for goods or services and the activity (a) is financed
with debt that is solely secured by a pledge of net revenues, (b) has third party
requirements that the cost of providing services, including capital costs, be recovered
with fees and charges or (c) established fees and charges based on a pricing policy
designed to recover similar costs.
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SCHEDULE C
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND - PARKING
JUNE 30, 2019
Parking Garage

On Street Meters

Total

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles)
Due from Other Funds
Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Land
Machinery and Equipment
Buildings, Distribution/Collection Systems & Improvements
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

$

$

25,197
681,272
5,461

$

625,625
0

$

25,197
1,306,897
5,461

711,930

$

625,625

$

1,337,555

$

569,969
276,509
15,284,213
(4,538,484)

$

146,834
(92,239)

$

569,969
423,343
15,284,213
(4,630,723)

$

11,592,207

$

54,595

$

11,646,802

12,304,137

$

680,220

$

12,984,357

$

13,908

$

2,419

$

16,327

$

13,908

$

2,419

$

16,327

$

12,318,045

$

682,639

$

13,000,684

9,382
108,375

$

2,385
-

$

11,767
108,375

$

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflow - Pension Participation in VMERS
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Total Assests and Deferred Outflows of Resources
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Benefits Payable
Unearned Revenue - Current Portion

$

$

117,757

$

8,570
26,004
276,923

$

6,587
4,523
-

$

15,157
30,527
276,923

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

$

311,497

$

11,110

$

322,607

Total Liabilities

$

429,254

$

13,495

$

442,749

$

1,387

$

241

$

1,628

$

1,387

$

241

$

1,628

$

430,641

$

13,736

$

444,377

$

11,592,207
295,197

$

54,595
614,308

$

11,646,802
909,505

$

11,887,404

$

668,903

$

12,556,307

12,318,045

$

682,639

$

13,000,684

Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences Payable
Net Pension Liability
Unearned Revenue - Noncurrent Portion

120,142

2,385

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflow - Pension Participation in VMERS
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted
Total Net Position
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and
Net Position

$

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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SCHEDULE D
CITY OF WINOOSKI, VERMONT
COMBINING STATEMENT OR REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN FUND
NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND - PARKING
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Parking Garage
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Service

$

Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses:
Salaries and Benefits
Purchased Services
Repairs and Maintenance
Electricity and Fuel
Administration
Other
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income

Total

On Street Meters

695,491

$

550,871

$

1,246,362

695,491

550,871

1,246,362

150,605
28,784
77,853
39,721
37,070
175,782
331,419

98,116
71,875
29,039
59,300
27,350
23,257

248,721
100,659
106,892
39,721
96,370
203,132
354,676

841,234

308,937

1,150,171

(145,743)

241,934

96,191

-

(824)

(824)

-

(824)

(824)

241,110

95,367

Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses):
Interest Expense
Total Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses)

-

Net Income Before Capital Contributions
and Transfers

(145,743)

Transfers Out

(110,197)

Change in Net Position

(255,940)

241,110

(14,830)

12,143,344

427,793

12,571,137

Net Position - July 1, 2018
Net Position - June 30, 2019

$

11,887,404

(110,197)

-

$

668,903

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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$

12,556,307

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
City Council
City of Winooski
Winooski, Vermont
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Winooski, Vermont as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City of Winooski, Vermont’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated December 23, 2019.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
City of Winooski, Vermont’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Winooski, Vermont’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Winooski, Vermont’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

3 Old Orchard Road, Buxton, Maine 04093
Tel: (800) 300-7708
(207) 929-4606
Fax: (207) 929-4609
www.rhrsmith.com
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have
not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Winooski,
Vermont’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication
is not suitable for any other purpose.

Buxton, Maine
Vermont Registration No. 092.0000697
December 23, 2019
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Agenda Item
Date
Submitting
Department
Recommended Action

Wild Kratts Critter Crawl Event Permit Application
January 21, 2020
Community and Economic Development

Strategic Vision Area
and Strategy
Expenditure Required
(amount and source)
Background
Information

Economic Vitality & Safe, Healthy, Connected People

Approve event permit for Wild Kratts Critter Crawl on Saturday,
May 30, 2020, with an approved rain date of Sunday, May 31st.

None
Staff has received an event permit application for the Wild
Kratts Critter Crawl to be held by Vermont PBS. This is a family
event featuring educational activities, a short walking parade,
games, food trucks, and live music. The event will start at 10
am on the sidewalk and grassy area of Winooski Falls Way, to
be followed by a single parade crossing at noon to Rotary Park
(the Critter Crawl). The event will conclude at 3:00 pm. The
event sponsors have also requested Sunday, May 31st as a rain
date. The event sponsor met with the event review team on
Wednesday, January 15th to discuss logistics. Staff is excited to
welcome Vermont PBS to the community, and recommends
approval of this family-friendly community event.

Supporting Documents Event Permit Application
Interested Parties
All
City Manager Approval

Heather Carrington
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Wufoo <no-reply@wufoo.com>
Monday, December 23, 2019 1:10 PM
Heather Carrington; jjaudy@winooskivt.gov
City of Winooski Event Permit Application [#120]

Name of Event *

Wild Kratts Critter Crawl

Date of Event or First Day of Event *

Saturday, May 30, 2020

Last Day of Event *

Saturday, May 30, 2020

Event Hours of Operation *

10am-3pm

Sponsoring Organization

Vermont PBS

Organization Address

10 E. Allen St. / Suite 202

City, State, Zip

Winooksi, VT 05404

Phone Number

(802) 655-8054

Contact Name *

Amy Zielinski

Phone Number *

(860) 978-5084

Contact Email *

azielinski@vermontpbs.org

Event Website

www.vermontpbs.org/events

Has the event been held in Winooski in

No

previous years? *
Estimated TOTAL Attendance (attendees,

250

participants, staff, vendors, spectators, etc.)
*Events with over 200 attendees require City
Council approval. *
Will there be street closures?

No

*Events requesting street closures require
City Council approval. *

1

Please give a brief description of your event

This is a family friendly event with educational activities, games, food

and its location: *

and live music. We are proposing that the event begin on the grassy
area of Winooski Falls Way where children and families will gather to
create or embellish their outfits for the critter crawl from 10am-12n. At
12n a walking parade (the critter crawl, with the help of volunteers) will
begin from Winooksi Falls Way to the Rotary Park when there will be
games, activities, food trucks and a concert. Plan is for Saturday, 5/30
with Sunday, 5/31 as a rain date.

Insurance Requirements *

No certificate attached - event sponsor will review requirements with
City staff.

Will there be alcohol sales/use? *

No

Will there be food/beverage vendors? *

Yes

The event will have food/beverage vending

Agree to requirement

and the event organizer will ensure that all
vendors are licensed
Will there be tents and/or canopies?

Yes

If tents over 1,200 square feet will be used: *

N/A - no tents of that size will be used

Will the event use any City Park other than

Yes

Rotary Park? *
Will the event use Rotary Park? (Fee for use of

Yes

Rotary park is $200 per day. Fees are
collected upon approval of event and prior to
issuance of permit. *
Will your event at Rotary Park have 200 or

Yes

more attendees?
Describe your plan for providing crossing

We plan to have families crossing at the same time (the parade/critter

guards:

crawl), but we will provide volunteers from 12:00pm through the end of
the concert.

Will your event require power supply usage? *

Yes

Will there be a stage at your event? *

No
2

Will your event include amplified sound? *

Yes

Check below to agree to requirement:

Amplified sound will end by 10 pm.

Check below to agree to requirement:

Amplified sound will not exceed 100 decibels as recorded from the curb
line.

How will you dispose of garbage generated at

Trash hauler will be contracted

your event? *
If you selected other, please explain: *

A trash hauler will be contracted

Please describe your recycling plan: *

We will offer trash, recycling and compost bins at the event. We will
reach out to the Waste Warriors for assistance.

Please describe your plan for event restroom

Restrooms will rented.

access: *
Please describe your plan for event security: *

We plan to have adult volunteers provide event security.

*

I understand that emergency vehicle access must be maintained at all
events, and I will work with the City to meet requirements.

Where will event participants park? *

Parking garage on Cascade Way

Will a shuttle from distant parking locations

No

be necessary? *
Check all that apply: *

All entrances and exits
Sidewalk usage
Stage
Food/beverage vendors
Other vendors
Restrooms
Power supply connections
Tent locations and sizes
If the event is a moving athletic event (run/walk/cycle) or a
parade/motorcade, submit a detailed route map with arrows indicating
direction of travel

3

Attach Site Map or Route Plan: *

map_for_critter_crawl.pdf 522.47 KB · PDF

4

Agenda Item

FY21 Proposed Budget Discussion

Date

January 21, 2020

Submitting
Department

Jessie Baker, City Manager
Angela Aldieri, Finance Director

Recommended Action

Receive overview presentation and follow-up information.
Provide direction to staff.

Strategic Vision Area
and Strategy

All

Expenditure Required
(amount and source)
Background
Information

FY21 Proposed All Fund Budget = $15,081,774

Supporting Documents

The full FY21 Budget Book is available here:
www.winooskivt.gov/1383/City-Budgets

Interested Parties
City Manager Approval

The full FY21 Proposed Budget was presented to the Council on
December 2, 2019. Department presentations followed. Staff
have prepared an overview with requested follow-up
information. Tonight is an opportunity for the Council to make
changes to the budget. At your meeting on January 27th, you
will hold a Public Hearing on the final budget and then approve
the budget to send to the voters on Town Meeting Day.

Overview Presentation with requested information
All

Proposed FY21 Budget
Jessie Baker
City Manager

January 21, 2020

Agenda
• Proposed Budget Overview
• Review of Recommended Budget Additions
• Requested Information
• TIF Modeling
• WCDC Legal Conditions

• Next Steps

2

Proposed General Fund Budget
FY20
FY21 (Proposed)
General Fund Budget $ 7,303,506 $ 7,627,149
Taxes Raised
$ 5,728,123
$ 5,926,638
Tax Rate
% change

1.1295
5.67%

1.1571
2.45%

Budget increase of 2.45%.
• 1.55% of that is for Pool Operations
For a home assessed at $225,000
• Projected tax bill =$2,603.57
• An increase of $62.19 from FY20 (or $15.55 a quarter)
• $39.34 for Pool Operations
• $22.86 for General Operations
3

What is included in this budget proposal?
And what are the tax rate impacts?

4

What is included in this budget proposal?
And what are the tax rate impacts?

5

What is not included in this proposal?
• Regional Dispatch Funding – Reserve request if needed

• JAG funding replacement
• Funding of the Community Liaison Expansion or Equity Council
• To expand program = $72,893.83
• $5k currently in budget for “lowering barriers”
• Net new = $67,893.83 or tax rate impact of $0.0134

6

General Fund
Total General Fund budget is $7,627,148.62

Revenue

Licenses & Permits
0.2%

Other
2.1%

Community Center
4.2%

Regional
Programs
3%

Fees, Fines & Forfeits
2.3%
Intergovernmental
6.4%

Community
Services
7%

Investment Income
0.3%

Charges for Services
1.6%

Expenditures

Capital
13%

General
Administration
17%
Fire & Code
Enforcement
6%

O'Brien
Community
Center
4%
Property Taxes &
PILOT
83.0%

Public Works
16%

Police
34%

7

What’s the bigger expenditure picture?
Rental Registry
2%
Water
6%

Community
Services
1%

CJC Community
1% Development
1%

Wastewater
8%

Parking
8%

General Fund
51%

TIF
22%

All Fund Expenditures
General Fund
TIF
Parking
Wastewater
Water
Rental Registry
Community Services
Community Development
CJC

FY21 Proposed
$
7,627,149
$
3,316,631
$
1,266,019
$
1,192,469
$
911,546
$
279,108
$
201,122
$
161,266
$
126,465
$
15,081,774

8

What’s the bigger service area picture?
Service Areas
Service Area
Public Works
TIF
Police
Administration
Parking
Community Services
Fire & Code Enforcement
Regional Programs

FY21 Expenses
$ 4,581,149
$ 3,316,631
$ 2,676,057
$ 1,444,764
$ 1,266,019
$ 834,205
$ 706,750
$ 256,200
$15,081,774

Community
Services
5%

Fire & Code
Enforcement
5%

Parking
8%

Regional
Programs
2%

Public Works
30%

Administration
10%

Police
18%

TIF
22%

9

Enterprise Fund:
Tax Increment
Financing District

10

Enterprise Fund:
Tax Increment Financing District – Modeling
Scenario #1: Assumptions
• Global Settlement final payment
• Sale and redevelopment of 17
Abenaki Way ($7M assessed
value)
• .5% Tax Rate increases FY22,
FY23, and FY24
• Continued GF transfer
• Projected Education Tax Rates
• Full payment of TD and Pecor
notes
• Full repayment of WCDC note

11

Enterprise Fund:
Tax Increment Financing District – Modeling
Scenario #2: Assumptions
• No Global Settlement final
payment
• Sale and redevelopment of 17
Abenaki Way ($7M assessed
value)
• .5% City and School Tax Rate
increases FY22, FY23, and FY24
• Continued GF transfer
• Full payment of TD and Pecor
notes
• 50% repayment of WCDC note

12

Enterprise Fund:
Tax Increment Financing District – Modeling
Scenario #3: Assumptions
• No Global Settlement final
payment
• No Sale and redevelopment of 17
Abenaki Way
• .5% City and School Tax Rate
increases FY22, FY23, and FY24
• Continued GF transfer
• Full payment of TD and Pecor
notes
• Forgive $560K repayment of
WCDC payment

13

Enterprise Fund:
Community
Development

14

Enterprise Fund: Community Development
The dispositive provision language for the WCDC Trust is as follows (ie
how we can use the WCDC note repayment funds):
The Trustees shall hold the Trust Property for the purpose of encouraging, developing, and
financing community resources critical to the quality of life and financial health of the City of
Winooski and its environs, including without limitation:
•
•
•
•

Creating jobs and fostering industry and commerce;
Business, office, factory, commercial, and industrial development;
Improving the quality of existing housing stock and promoting future housing opportunities;
Fostering and preserving educational, artistic, recreational, cultural, and historical resources for
residents of the City of Winooski.

15

Reserves (as of 6/30/2019)

16

Tax Rate History
Tax
Rate
FY15
FY16
FY17
FY18
FY19
FY20

$1.0150
$1.0250
$1.0325
$1.0450
$1.0689
$1.1296

% Increase from
Prior Year
2.01%
0.99%
0.73%
1.21%
2.29%
5.68%

17

Next Steps
Discussion and Direction to Staff
The final votes required by the Council:
• General Fund budget and approval of warning for Town Meeting Day.
• Approve the individual Enterprise and Special Revenue Funds for FY21.
• Approve associated rate increases and a Fee Ordinance Chapter update.

18

Agenda Item

Resolution: FY21 Water Rate

Date

January 21, 2020

Submitting Department

Angela Aldieri, Finance Director
Jon Rauscher, Public Works Director

Recommended Action

Approve Resolution establishing FY21 Water Rates as presented

Strategic Vision Area
and Strategy

Municipal Infrastructure

Expenditure Required
(amount and source)
Background Information

N/A

Supporting Documents

The full FY21 Budget Book is available here:
www.winooskivt.gov/1383/City-Budgets

Interested Parties
City Manager Approval

The full FY21 Proposed Budget was presented to the Council on
December 2, 2019. Departmental presentations followed.
Discussed during these presentations were the FY21 Water
Rates.

Water Rate Resolution
All

Resolution
Water Usage Rate
Whereas , pursuant to Section§ 19-401 of the Charter of the City of Winooski, Chapter 28 of the City Ordinance
serves to (1) provide for a fine or other penalty for violation of City ordinance; (2) regulate the rate charged for
municipal water, sewer, and utility services; and (3) establish other fees;
Whereas , on January 22, 2019 the Winooski City Council, after a duly warned Public Hearing, approved the fees
as laid out in Chapter 28 of the City Ordinance;
Whereas , Chapter 28 of the City Ordinance states that for metered water usage charges “Council (is) to establish
annually by resolution during the budget process”;
Therefore , so be it resolved that City Council shall adopt the following rate for metered water consumption
effective for usages occurring after July 1, 2020:
$40.63 / 1000 cubic feet
Minimum charge of 500 cubic feet
Affirmative Vote:
__________________________
Mayor

________________________
Attest (City Clerk)

__________________________
Councilor

________________________
Approved Date

__________________________
Councilor
__________________________
Councilor
__________________________
Councilor

Agenda Item

Resolution: FY21 Wastewater Rate

Date

January 21, 2020

Submitting
Department

Angela Aldieri, Finance Director
Jon Rauscher, Public Works Director

Recommended Action

Approve Resolution establishing FY21 Wastewater Rates as
presented

Strategic Vision Area
and Strategy

Municipal Infrastructure

Expenditure Required
(amount and source)
Background
Information

N/A

Supporting Documents

The full FY21 Budget Book is available here:
www.winooskivt.gov/1383/City-Budgets

Interested Parties
City Manager Approval

The full FY21 Proposed Budget was presented to the Council on
December 2, 2019. Departmental presentations followed.
Discussed during these presentations were the FY21
Wastewater Rates.

Wastewater Rate Resolution
All

Resolution
Wastewater Usage Rate
Whereas, pursuant to Section§ 19-401 of the Charter of the City of Winooski, Chapter 28 of the City
Ordinance serves to (1) provide for a fine or other penalty for violation of City ordinance; (2) regulate the
rate charged for municipal water, sewer, and utility services; and (3) establish other fees;
Whereas, on January 22, 2019 the Winooski City Council, after a duly warned Public Hearing, approved
the fees as laid out in Chapter 28 of the City Ordinance;
Whereas, Chapter 28 of the City Ordinance states that for wastewater charges “Council (is) to establish
annually by resolution during the budget process”;
Therefore, so be it resolved that City Council shall adopt the following rate for wastewater charges
effective for usages occurring after July 1, 2020:
$52.03 / 1000 cubic feet of metered water consumption
Affirmative Vote:
__________________________
Mayor

________________________
Attest (City Clerk)

__________________________
Councilor

________________________
Approved Date

__________________________
Councilor
__________________________
Councilor
__________________________
Councilor

Agenda Item
Date
Submitting
Department
Recommended Action

Goal Update: Safe, Healthy, Connected People
January 21, 2020
Community Services, Police, Fire/Code Enforcement

Strategic Vision Area
and Strategy

Safe, Healthy, Connected People

Expenditure Required
(amount and source)
Background
Information

n/a

Supporting Documents

SHCP Goal Update Memo.

Interested Parties

All

City Manager Approval

Receive update on progress to-date for Council approved goals
in the Safe, Healthy, Connected People priority area.

Please see attached memo.

Memorandum
To:
From:
Date:
Re:

Mayor Lott and City Council
Jessie Baker, City Manager
Chief Hebert, Chief Audy, Ray Coffey
January 21, 2020
2019-2020 Policy Priorities and Strategies for Approval

Per the Council adopted 2019-2020 Policy Priorities and Strategies and the accompanying monitoring plan,
we present the next goal update on Safe, Healthy, and Connected People. Below you will find a chart of
the adopted strategies, a narrative of the updates.
Key
= proceeding as planned
= proceeding but slower than planned

Area

Safe,
Healthy,
Connected
People
(SHCP)

POLICY
Policy Goal
Foster relationships
across generations
and cultures by
providing safe,
healthy
environments and
opportunities to
connect and engage.

Priority
Must Do

= started but not proceeding well
= not started yet
ADMINISTRATION
Strategies
Continue Regional Dispatch discussions
 CCPSA implementation
 PD building improvements
 Administrative support remaining
Implement Police Department Strategic
Plan- On
 Integrating Communication Assessment
and Tactics De-escalation training
 Develop and Retain Personnel - Career
Development, Wellness and Emerging
Issues
 Community Policing – Outreach,
Education and Relationships
 Maximize Operational Efficiency –
Regional Dispatch, Technology
Improvements, Grant Funding
Complete a Parks and Open Space Plan
(MI)
 Consider future land use of Parks
(Casavant, Gilbrook, Memorial)
 Focus on the accessibility of parks and
programming

Status

OCC Implementation of changes (MI)
 Public face of the City on-site
 New relationships with tenants
 Library as a service hub
Address Riverwalk East Grant closeout

Safe,
Healthy,
Connected
People
(SHCP)

Foster relationships
across generations
and cultures by
providing safe,
healthy
environments and
opportunities to
connect and engage.

Participate in Census 2020
Review Fair and Impartial Policing Policy
 Commission review after State policy
change
Community Risk Reduction Efforts
 VRRP partnership
 Business partnerships
Emergency Management
 Leadership Training on LEOP

Pending Resource
Availability (human
and dollars)

Expand School Partnerships
 Processes with new Communications
and Development professional
 Shared translation services
 Participate in school reconstruction
process (including ROW and public
safety review)
Increase Community Services programming
based on the recommendations of the
Programming Study
FY21 Proposal: Explore the
implementation of a K9 program
 What is the added value?
 Are there exterior funding sources?
 What are the long-term budget
implications?
Partner more with GMT on transportation
access equity including for seniors and to
support programming
Plan for a municipal role in the early child
care crisis
 In partnership with School
 Additional evaluation of potential and
funding opportunities

Must Dos
Continue Regional Dispatch discussions including CCPSA implementation, PD building improvements
and Administrative support remaining
The CCPSA continues to meet and work with IXP on the implementation of a Regional Dispatch Center. As
the project moves forward we will have more details on the specific workload the dispatch center is willing
to take on and needed administrative support going forward.
Building improvements will also be a topic of discussion once a clear timeline to stand up the center has
been set. Initial thoughts are:
 Video phone in lobby for afterhours walk in service
 Modifications/addition of bathrooms added to holding cell
No timeline has been established at the time of this report update.
Implement Police Department Strategic Plan- Integrating Communication Assessment and Tactics Deescalation training
The Winooski Police Department currently has 3 instructors certified to instruct this training. An 8 hour
class of instruction was taught to every sworn member of the department in December 2019.
Complete a Parks and Open Space Plan
The contract to manage our comprehensive Parks and Open Space Master Planning process was awarded
to Omnes Studio after a competitive bid process, and they began work in October 2019. Staff from Omnes
did a five day “immersion” to kick off their work, visiting parks, meeting with residents, and attending our
Halloween event. The “Inventory and Analysis” portion of the project was presented at a meeting of the
SHCP Commission in December 2019, and Omnes has continued to connect with residents, staff, and
organizational partners to solicit feedback, which is being incorporated into conceptual design documents
for our Parks. We expect to present draft design concepts to the Public in February 2020.
OCC Implementation of changes
The new City offices for Community Services are complete, and in January began a schedule of regular
hours where residents can access many services including registering for programs, paying Community
Services program balances (credit card only), or checking out materials from our as our “Library of Things”.
The expanded hours provide another option for residents seeking to transact business with our
Department, and help alleviate some of the shuffling between OCC and City Hall.
UVM Medical Center wrapped up a significant project to improve their space, and North End Studios
continues to make nearly daily improvements to their spaces at the OCC.

The City, with generous support from Efficiency Vermont, completed a significant upgrade to the HVAC
system for both the core suite, as well as the CHCB/VT Dental Suite.
The transition to new tenants has continued to be positive overall, and we are seeing growing use of the
building by the community. Additionally, we’ve seen some reductions in the challenging youth behavior we
experienced over the summer, which is typical for this time of year, but also enhanced by the expanded
presence of tenants.
Address Riverwalk East Grant closeout
Jon Rauscher completed close out paperwork for this grant this quarter.
Participate in Census 2020
Ray Coffey has met with Census staff twice this quarter, and is working with an interested resident to
stand up a Complete Count Committee (CCC). Ray has weekly contact with the Regional Census office,
and will be working with the CCC to craft a slate of strategies to ensure as complete a count as possible for
our City.
Review Fair and Impartial Policing Policy
The Vermont Attorney General’s Office and the Vermont Criminal Justice Training Council have verified
that with the recent law change allowing municipalities to draft more restrictive policies, the City of
Winooski Fair and Impartial Policing policy in now in compliance with state law. We are not currently able
to access JAG allocated funding as a result of our Fair and Impartial Policing Policy.
Community Risk Reduction (CRR) Efforts
CRR efforts continue to be part of our daily work plans. Data being collected is identifying where our
efforts/staffing should be focused and is prioritizing this work. An example of this is we have experienced
an increased number of fires where oxygen dependent residents are also smoking. In 2019 the city sadly
experienced a fatal fire because of this. In January 2020 staff distributed to several properties a one-page
Community Risk Reduction safety message explaining the dangers of smoking while using oxygen.
The Fire Department held an “Open House” in the Fall of 2019. This was attended by approximately 25
residents.

Emergency Management
An introduction to the current LEMP was done with the City Leadership Team, additional training and
exercises with be planned in the near future. The annual update to the existing LEMP will also be
completed spring 2020.
Expand School Partnerships
The Community Services Department continues to partner closely with the School District around shared
space (for Thrive, Youth Basketball, etc.) and to support expanded programming for youth, including
through our partnership around the 21st Century Community Learning Center (“21C”) grant. This includes
youth soccer (100+ youth enrolled), youth football (~40 youth enrolled), Thrive After School (~40 youth
enrolled), and several new upcoming programs led by City staff.
Communications Coordinator Paul Sarne is working closely with the School District’s new Communications
staff member (Emily Hecker) around joint outreach.
Staff from Public Works are actively participating in the School District’s Planning Team for their proposed
school expansion project, and the Project Review Committee had an initial meeting with the architects and
engineers for the project in August.
Pending Resource Availability (human and dollars)
Increase Community Services programming based on the recommendations of the Programming
Study
“Halloween in Winooski” was a huge success and planning is already underway for Halloween 2020.
Using the results of our Programming Study we’ve continued to add new programming options, including
“First Month”, American Sign Language, and musical programming at the Library (among others). This is in
addition to efforts to improve and expand existing programs.
Summer Program planning (including Pool Operations) is well underway, and our slate of Summer offerings
is projected to be announced in early February 2020.
FY21 Proposal: Explore the implementation of a K9 program
The combined staffing effect of having an open police officer position and a focus on leadership training
for this fiscal year led to the decision to table this program for now.
Partner more with GMT on transportation access equity including for seniors and to support
programming

Ray Coffey met with Austin Davis (Green Mountain Transit Board of Commissioners) and the Mayor to
discuss current initiatives and provide feedback from the Winooski perspective.
Ray Coffey and Barb Pitfido have been engaged with the United Way, CCRPC, and Green Mountain Transit
around ongoing work to improve the Elderly and Disabled (E&D) Transit program through GMT, including
having United Way/CCRPC stepping in to facilitate the regional group.
We will have an intern from Champlain College this semester focusing her Senior Capstone on
Transportation within Winooski.
Plan for a municipal role in the early child care crisis
Given the intense focus on Thrive’s financial solvency, as well as efforts to adjust our approach to summer
programming, this work is delayed. With the Governor’s recent inclusion of After School care in his State
of the State address, we expect an increased focus on the subject statewide, and will look for ways to
remain engaged in any efforts that ensue.

Agenda Item

Vermont Economic Progress Council Tax Increment Financing
District Annual Report Certification

Date
Submitting
Department
Recommended Action

January 21, 2020
Finance

Strategic Vision Area
and Strategy

All

Expenditure Required
(amount and source)
Background
Information

n/a

Supporting Documents

Vermont Economic Progress Council Tax Increment Financing
District Annual Report
All

Interested Parties
City Manager Approval

To accept the report on the FY2019 Tax Increment Financing
District activities as presented by staff.

As part of the legislation related to Tax Increment Financing
Districts annual reports on financial and performance metrics
are required to be filed with the Vermont Economic Progress
Council in February for the prior fiscal year. The attached report
indicates activity within the district from July 1, 2018 through
June 30, 2019 as compiled by the Economic Development
Director and Finance Director. Review by Council is required
prior to submission of the final document.

CERTIFICATION OF INCREMENT AND ANNUAL REPORT
STATUTORY REQUIREMENT: (24 VSA §1895) “As of the date the district is created, the lister or assessor for
the municipality shall certify the original taxable value and shall certify to the legislative body in each year
thereafter during the life of the district the amount by which the total valuation as determined in accordance with
32 VSA Chapter 129 of all taxable real property located within the tax increment financing district has increased
or decreased relative to the original taxable value.”
RULE REQUIREMENT: (SECTION 903) “Increase/Decrease in Assessed Valuation: Each year following the
year of creation, the listers or assessor shall certify to the municipal legislative body the amount by which the
total assessed valuation of taxable properties within the TIF District has increased or decreased compared to
the municipal and education OTV. Prior to providing the certification to the municipal legislative body, the listers
or assessor shall have the calculation of the increase or decrease, including an examination of the disposition
and tax status of each parcel within the District, verified by a second party. Selection of the second party is up
to the municipality and may be an individual within or outside of the municipal government. However, the
individual should be familiar with parcel listings and valuation, property tax status, and the concepts of OTV and
District increment. A copy of the certification of the value and the increase or decrease must be included in the
Annual Report required by Section 1004.2 of this Rule along with a certification that a second party reviewed
the information. The Council will provide a form on which to provide this certification.”

SECTION 1: Certification of Increment by Assessor or Lister and 2nd Party Reviewer
Check both certification boxes and sign this form. If the boxes or signatures are not completed, this form will be
considered incomplete. The second party reviewer should be familiar with parcel listings and valuation, property
tax status, and the concepts of OTV and District increment.
We certify that, per TIF Rule Sections 903 and 1004.2, we have examined and verified the current value,
the calculation of the increase or decrease in property values, the disposition and tax status of each
parcel within the District, and any other issues relevant to the parcels listed in the Certified OTV Property
We have certified to the municipal legislative body, at a regular or duly warned meeting that the
information provided in this report represent true and accurate statements.
Signature of Assessor or Lister
Name:

Title

Date

Title

Date

Signature of 2nd Party Reviewer
Name:

SECTION 2: Certification of Annual Report
Provide the date the annual report was presented to the municipal legislative body. Check both certification
boxes and sign this form. If the boxes or signatures are not completed, this form will be considered incomplete.
Date report presented to the municipal legislative body:

1/21/2019

I certify that I am an official of the reporting municipality with the authority to report on this TIF District on
behalf of the municipality.
I certify that the annual report data entered and all documents attached in support of this annual report
are true, correct and complete to the best of my knowledge.
Signature of Authorizing Official*
Name:

Title

Date

* Authorizing Official is the Chief Executive Officer of the municipality as defined by 10 VSA § 683(8) such
as a Select Board or City Council Member, Town or City Manager, or Town Administrator.

Tax Increment Financing District
Vermont Economic Progress Council
Vermont Department of Taxes
VEPC Staff Contact Information:
Abbie Sherman, (802) 793‐0721, abbie.sherman@vermont.gov

Reports are due on or before January 15, 2020
I. District Information:
Municipality & District

Reporting Period: July 1, 2018 ‐ June 30, 2019

Winooski: Winooski TIF District

Name of Person Completing Report
Title
Email Address
Telephone
Date Report Completed

2018

Grand List Year:

Angela Aldieri/Heather Carrington
Finance Director/Community Development
aaldieri@winooskivt.gov/hcarrington@winoo
802‐655‐6410
1/7/2020

NOTE: All information reported on this form by the municipality must be for the Reporting Period and Grand List Year identified above.

II. TIF District Data:
Base Data (Original Taxable Value)
Municipal
Homestead‐ Education
Non Residential‐ Education
Total Education
Taxable Values as of April 1
Municipal
Homestead‐ Education
Non Residential‐ Education
Total Education

$
$
$
$

25,065,900
386,400
24,679,500
25,065,900

$
$
$
$

104,484,600
15,333,600
89,104,820
104,438,420

Increase (Decrease) in Taxable Values (auto‐calculated)
$
Municipal
$
Homestead‐ Education
$
Non Residential‐ Education
$
Total Education
TIF Increment Revenue Retained for Reporting Year
$
Municipal
$
Homestead‐ Education
$
Non Residential‐ Education
$
Total Education
Total TIF Revenue $
Other TIF Fund Income
Source
1 Interest Earnings
2 PILOTs (VSAC, Hallken, State of Vermont)
3 Ground Leases
4 Interest/Investment Income
5 Parking Garage Contribution
6 Legal Settlement, Sale of Ground Lease
7
8

OTV Total Acres
OTV Total Parcels

138.92
163

Parcel Information
Current Acres
Current Parcels

142.52
163

Tax Rates Applied to the April 1 Grand List
Municipal (General Fund) $
Homestead $
Non Residential $

79,418,700
14,947,200
64,425,320
79,372,520

1.0703
1.4777
1.7281

List Special Municipal Tax Rates
$
1
$
2
$
3
$
4
$
5
$
6
Total Special Municipal Tax $

850,018
216,457
1,091,067
1,307,525
2,157,543

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

Total Municipal (General Fund)
$
& Special Rates

Education
$

‐

Total: $

‐

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Municipal
8,764
553,825
25,135
93,750
110,197
1,050,000
‐
‐
1,841,672

1.0703

Total
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

8,764
553,825
25,135
93,750
110,197
1,050,000
‐
‐
1,841,672

1/7

Changes to Individual Parcels
SPAN Number
1 774‐246‐10295
2 774‐246‐10310
3 774‐246‐10317
4 774‐246‐10799
5 774‐246‐12374
6

Describe Change
$107,500 increase in assessed value due to improvements
$318,400 increase in assessed value due to improvements
$995,300 increase in assessed value due to redevelopment
$74,200 increase in assessed value due to improvements
$35,200 decrease in assessed value due to appeal

Additional Information

III. Votes and Financing:

Debt Instruments
Term
in
Years

Infrastructure and Debt

Period
(ie. 1/1/2016‐
12/31/2026)

Interest
Rate

Principal

Interest

Total

Total Payment
for Reporting
Period

Remaining
Principal
Balance

Terminated

Public Vote Information. Check the appropriate box. Make sure to provide the date if information has been submitted to VEPC.
No public votes or debt obligations occurred during this reporting period.
Yes there were public votes and/or debt obligations during this reporting period.
Vote and debt obligation documents were submitted to VEPC. (Enter date submitted)
Vote and debt obligation documents are uploaded with this report.

Existing Debt:

1

2

3

Downtown Land Purchase ‐ 2014
Variable Rate Special Obligation
Refunding Bond and Special Revenue
Bond
Downtown Land Purchase ‐ Special
Obligation TIF Note ‐ Winooski
Community Development Trust
Refinanced ‐ 2014 Special Obligation
Refunding Bond

20

7/1/2005‐6/30/2024

5%
6%
7%

$

3,000,000

$

3,256,655

$

6,256,655

$

859,441

$

2,519,582

20

7/1/2005‐6/30/2024

5%
6%

$

1,098,000

$

1,339,034

$

2,437,034

$

150,000

$

1,098,000

10

5/15//2014 ‐ 5/1/2024

2.79% $ 17,000,000

$

2,521,022 $ 19,521,022

$

1,964,413

$

9,015,076

$

340,909

$

2,950,000

New Debt:
Example: Main Street Lights ‐ General Obligation
Bond

11

1/1/2016‐12/31/2025

5.60% $

3,250,000

$

500,000

$

3,750,000

4

0

0.00% $

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

5

0

0.00% $

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

6

0

0.00% $

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

Total

7,116,711 $ 28,214,711

$

2,973,854 $ 12,632,658

period?

$
$
$
$

2,167,627
806,227
‐
2,973,854

Direct Payments: Enter the total amount of any TIF direct payments made
during this period.

$

Refinancing. Was any portion of TIF District debt refinanced during this reporting

Annual Debt Service
Principal Paid
Interest Paid
Fees/Other Costs Paid
Total Paid

$ 21,098,000

No
Yes, please provide details.

$

‐

Date Approved by Voters:

2/7

Additional Information

IV. Improvements and Funding:
Improvement Expenditures
Of the Total Expenditure listed:
Name of Improvement

5

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐
Check

$
$

‐
‐

Project Name:

Project Name:

Total

Total Amount
Total Amount Spent
Secured for
to Date
Each Source
32,025,853
$
32,025,853 $
832,000
$
832,000 $
$
129,195 $
7,859
$
‐ $
‐
‐
$
‐ $
$
‐ $
‐
$
‐ $
‐
$
‐ $
‐
Total $
32,865,712
32,987,048 $
Non‐TIF Revenues Reported under Improvement Expenditures

Sources of Non‐TIF Revenues
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

$

Surface Parking Lot
This project was completed in FY2017

4

‐

Circular Improvements
This project was completed in FY2017

3

$

Multiuse path connecting Riverwalk to Colchester
The planning grant for this project has closed and full implementation is not being
pursued at this time.

2

The amount paid with
Non‐TIF Revenues

Reported for 2004‐2012
Land Sale (Cascades, Lot C)
TCSE Grant

Total Amount Spent
this Period

Closed

1

Total Improvement
Expenditure for this
report period

The amount paid with
TIF Revenues

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

x
x

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

Related Costs
List and describe the related cost(s)

Paid With
Education TIF Revenue

Paid With
Municipal TIF Revenue

Paid With Other
Municipal Revenue

1

Professional Services (AMTEC)

$

‐

$

‐

$

1,000

$

1,000

2

Legal Fees

$

‐

$

‐

$

148,074

$

148,074

3

Development Agreement Payment

$

‐

$

‐

$

247,335

$

247,335

4

Cost Reimbursement (Electricity, Maint, Fire, PD)

$

‐

$

‐

$

226,721

$

226,721

5

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

6

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

Total $

‐

$

‐

$

623,130
Check

Total Cost for this
report period.

$
$

623,130
623,130
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V. Performance Indicators:
Standard
Real Property Development
Revitilization and improvement of significant downtown areas.
1

Grand List value growth as reported as a change from the Original Taxable Value
$

2

79,418,700

Enhanced emplyment opportunities within the City of Winooski.

21

Business stability and growth incentives.

3

The number of businesses within the downtown district continued to grow in 2018‐2019, although at a slightly
slower pace than the previous year. Two businesses closed, while four new businesses opened, one of which was a
rebranding of a previous business under new ownership. One existing business expanded its operations to include
a second floor. 6 of the 8 new businesses opened in 2017‐2018 continued in business throughout 2018‐2019. The
current number of businesses in the TIF district is 46. In addition there are two large institutional occupants,
Vermont Student Assistance Corporation and Community College of Vermont; two banks, TD Bank and
Opportunities Federal Credit Union; and one U.S. Post Office branch. Two commercial spaces that were vacant last
year have been absorbed by new retail business, in addition to the one business under new ownership which
retained the same space. Overall, the number of businesses downtown grew 5% over the last year.

46

Development of high density housing in the commercial center.
No new housing was developed within the TIF boundaries in 2018‐2019.
4
A new 39 unit true mixed‐income building was constructed adjacent to the TIF in the form‐based code district. The
new building, Casavant Overlook, is comprised of 12 market rate units, and 27 affordable housing units, 4 of which
are service‐enriched housing for the homeless.

0

Grand
as rep
from
Taxab
Emplo
by W
Partn

Numb
the d
by W

Addition
in the c
center,
of dens
comme
compar
comme

Reduction of pressure for commercial and residential development upon open lands in the region.

5

One existing business in the TIF district expanded to create new commercial space in 2019.
The conversion of a second floor of Sneakers created approximately 1,500 square feet of
usable new commercial event and bar space. In addition, approximately 2,000 square feet
of previously vacant commercial space has been newly occupied within the downtown core,
reducing the pressure for green field development. No new housing units were developed
in 2019.

Square Footage

Number of Units

3,500

0

Number
and squa
commerc

Integration into and compatibility with regional development and capital plans.
6

The TIF district developments over 2018‐2019 are aligned with the City of Winooski Municipal Development Plan,
adopted March 18, 2019. In addition, development is aligned with the Chittenden County ECOS Regional Plan,
Adopted June 20, 2018.

3/18/2019

Affordable Housing
7

The City of Winooski had a Housing Needs Assessment conducted by the Community Development and Applied
Economics graduate department at the University of Vermont. The Housing Needs Assessment, delivered in July of
2016, reports that 45% of rental stock in Winooski qualifies as affordable.

45.00%

Vibrancy in the downtown with additional shops, restaurants, etc.

8

Four new businesses opened in FY2019, contributing to the vibrancy in the downtown district. These included: a
traditional chinese bakery, a mexican restaurant, a deli/corner store, and an event planning company. The addition
of new businesses while the vast majority of existing businesses continue to thrive has almost entirely filled the
previously vacant ground floor commercial space. While the loss of two adjacent businesses in 2019 left the spaces
vacant, that space was leased and will be fit‐up for 2020. The excellent reputation of the diverse downtown
$
restaurants has been drawing attention from outside the City. In addition, the residential population in the
downtown district provides a direct customer base for downtown businesses. Between FY2018 and FY2019, total
gross receipts for Sales & Use dropped by 25%, while Meals, Rooms, and Alcohol showed an overall increase of
11%. The total change for both Sales & Use and Rooms & Meals was a drop in gross receipts of 23%.

233,168,759
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Employment Opportunities
Jobs data was acquired through direct outreach to businesses and verification through Vermont Department of Labor website Economic and
Labor Market Information (ELMI) data tools. The number of new jobs in 2019 is lower than the 2018 numbers, in part due to the high rate of
previously vacant space being absorbed in 2018. In addition, there were no large‐scale construction projects in the TIF district in 2019. The net
new jobs within the TIF district is 21 positions, which reflect 27 new jobs, and the loss of 6 positions through business closure. Overall, the
stability of the new businesses from the last two years, with only two closures in the TIF over the 2019 reporting year, indicates that the vast
majority of new employment opportunities in 2017 and 2018 remain stable jobs in 2019.

Additional Information

Mandated
Jobs
NAICS Code

Increase or
(Decrease)

NAICS Code

Increase or
(Decrease)

1

11

0

11

53

0

2

21

0

12

54

0

3

22

0

13

55

0

4

23

0

14

56

12

5

31‐33

0

15

61

0

6

42

0

16

62

0

7

44‐45

(3)

17

71

0

Previous Location (if known)

8

48‐49

0

18

72

12

9

51

0

19

81

0

10

52

0

20

92

0

Previous Location (if known)

Burlington

One restaurant is a second
location ‐ The first location is
in Burlington. The second
restaurant is a new business.

Total Jobs Increase (Decrease)

21

Identify Source/Method for Obtaining Jobs Information
Direct outreach to businesses and verification through Vermont Department of Labor website Economic and Labor Market Information (ELMI)
data tools.

Vermont Firms
Name of Vermont Firm

Total amount of work
performed

Name of Vermont Firm

Total amount of work
performed

1

MSK Attorneys

$

47,698

11

$

‐

2

Paul, Frank + Collins

$

100,376

12

$

‐

$

‐

13

$

‐

3
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4

$

‐

14

$

‐

5

$

‐

15

$

‐

6

$

‐

16

$

‐

7

$

‐

17

$

‐

8

$

‐

18

$

‐

9

$

‐

19

$

‐

10

$

‐

20

$

‐

$

148,074

Total Amount of Work Performed
Additional Information
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TIF District Specific
The public and private improvements and investments made in the Winooski TIF District have realized the goals established in the Winooski Redevelopment
Plan. Specifically these public and private investment revitalized the historic Champlain Mill, transitioned an expansive surface parking lot into a vibrant
neighborhood composed of mixed income housing, commercial space, office space, municipal infrastructure, and open space. This redevelopment has led to a
period of growth and expansion throughout Winooski and created a sense of place where people want to live, work, and play.

Housing Changes (optional)
Affordable Housing

Market Rate Housing

Total

New

0

0

0

Elminated

0

0

0

Net Total

0

0

0

Additional Information
No new housing was developed within the TIF boundaries in 2018‐2019.
A new 39 unit true mixed‐income building was constructed adjacent to the TIF in the form‐based code district. The new building, Casavant
Overlook, is comprised of 12 market rate units, and 27 affordable housing units, 4 of which are service‐enriched housing for the homeless.

7/7

